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JOHN CHIANG
California State Controller

March 28, 2008

To the Citizens, Governor, and Members
of the Legislature of the State of California:

| am pleased to submit the State of California Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
year ended June 30, 2007. This report meets the requirements of Government Code Section 12460 for
an annual report prepared strictly in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) and contains information to help readers gain a reasonable
understanding of the State’s financial activities.

The news in California is similar to that throughout the nation: the mortgage meltdown and higher energy
costs are dragging down operating revenues. The slowing of the economy has depressed the State’s Big
Three tax revenues — personal income, sales and use, and corporate taxes, which are the major source
of funding for government operations.

California’s tax structure relies heavily on personal income taxes paid by its wealthiest residents; over
54% of the 2006-07 fiscal year General Fund revenues came from personal income taxes. This
dependency leaves the State budget especially vulnerable to fluctuations in capital gains and dividends.
The State’s fiscal year closed with $91.0 billion from its Big Three tax revenues and a General Fund
deficit of $1.9 billion, down from the $2.7 billion balance at the end of the 2005-06 fiscal year.

We are continuing to see less tax revenues in the current fiscal year. | refer you to my monthly cash
report, available at www.sco.ca.gov, for the status of the State’s General Fund receipts and
disbursements as compared to the 2007-08 fiscal year budget estimates. As chairman of the California
Franchise Tax Board, | recently asked staff to study how we can hold tax receipts generated in good
economic times to help fill the budget holes when economic conditions decline dramatically.

Despite slowing budgetary resources, we must stay focused on targeting spending for programs that
reflect the priorities of the people of California. Although the Governor proposes across-the-board
reductions in his 2008-09 budget proposal, an approach that prioritizes programs and maximizes the use
of increasingly scarce resources from all sources seems more fiscally prudent. Decision-makers must
carefully choose from a wide range of options and seek actions that will have positive long-term results,
not merely shift current budgetary problems to future years.

Several major infrastructure projects have commenced using the bond financing approved by the State’s
voters in November 2006. The Legislature has appropriated a portion of these funds that my office is
auditing to ensure that state agencies maintain proper oversight of the intended use of taxpayer dollars.

In 2007, | commissioned California’s first actuarial report on Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB),
mainly healthcare benefits for retired state workers. Following the requirements of Governmental
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Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45, this actuarial valuation disclosed that the State faces a
$47.9 billion unfunded liability that must be addressed. | believe it is imperative that the Administration and
Legislature begin to consider some level of pre-funding to help reduce the existing liability of retiree health care
benefits for police officers, firefighters, teachers, and others who dedicate themselves to public service. A
responsible prefunding plan will take advantage of interest earnings, thereby offsetting the State’s cash outlay
in future years. In January 2008, the California Public Employee Post-Employment Benefits Commission,
appointed by the Legislature and Governor, also unanimously recommended that the state and local
governments “prefund” retiree health benefits by setting aside and investing funds as employees earn OPEB
benefits.

Introduction to the Report

Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, and fairness of data presented in the CAFR, including all
disclosures, rests with the State. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all
material respects and are reported in a manner that fairly presents the financial position and the operations of
the primary government and its component units.

State statutes require an annual audit of the basic financial statements of the State. To meet this requirement,
the State Auditor has examined the accompanying financial statements in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. The auditor’s report on the basic financial statements and the
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the CAFR.

The State of California is also required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of
the United States Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. In conducting the engagement, the State Auditor used auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Information related to this single audit—including a schedule of
federal assistance, the independent auditor’s report on requirements applicable to each major program and on
internal controls over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, and a schedule of findings and
questioned costs—is included in a separately issued report.

The CAFR contains three sections: Introductory, Financial, and Statistical. The Introductory Section is designed
to provide the background and context that readers need to benefit fully from the information presented in the
Financial Section. The Financial Section contains the independent auditor’s report, management’s discussion
and analysis, the basic financial statements, the required supplementary information, the combining and
individual fund statements, and the budgetary comparison schedule for nonmajor governmental cost funds.
The Statistical Section provides a history of selected financial and demographic information.

The State’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s
report and contains an introduction, overview, and analysis of the financial statements. Our MD&A provides a
narrative introduction to the detailed financial statements and notes contained in the CAFR.
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Profile of the Government
Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity of the State includes all of the funds of the primary government and of its
component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the primary government is financially
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
primary government’s operations and are included as part of the primary government. Accordingly, the building
authorities are reported in the capital projects funds of the primary government. The lease agreements
between the building authorities and the primary government, amounting to $568 million, have been eliminated
from the balance sheet. Instead, only the underlying capital assets and the debt used to acquire them are
reported in the government-wide statements. The Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corporation and the
California State University, Channel Islands Site and Financing authorities are reported in the special revenue
funds of the primary government.

Discretely presented component units are reported separately in the government-wide financial statements, in
order to emphasize that they are legally separate from the primary government and to differentiate their
financial position and results of operations from those of the primary government. Additional information on the
reporting entity is included in Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Budgetary Controls

The State Legislature prepares an annual budget that contains estimates of revenues and expenditures for the
ensuing fiscal year. This budget is the result of negotiations between the Governor and the Legislature.
Throughout the fiscal year, adjustments, in the form of budget revisions, executive orders, and financial
legislation agreed to by the Governor and the Legislature, are made to the budget. The State Controller is
statutorily responsible for control over revenues due the primary government and for expenditures of each
appropriation contained in the budget. Budgeted appropriations are the expenditure authorizations that allow
state agencies to purchase or create liabilities for goods and services.

The State’s accounting system provides the State Controller's Office with a centrally controlled record system
to fully account for each budgeted appropriation, including its unexpended balance, and for all cash receipts
and disbursements. The accounting system is decentralized, meaning the detail of each control account is
maintained by each state agency. During the fiscal year, the control accounts and the agency accounts are
maintained and reconciled on a cash basis. At the end of the fiscal year, each agency prepares annual accrual
reports for receivables and payables. The State Controller’'s Office combines its control account balances with
the agency accrual reports to prepare California’s Budgetary/Legal Basis Annual Report and the Budgetary/
Legal Basis Annual Report Supplement. State laws and regulations that, in some cases, do not fully agree with
GAAP govern the methods of accounting for expenditures and revenues in these reports.

The information in the CAFR represents a consolidation of the amounts in the Budgetary/Legal Basis Annual
Report and adjustments to the account balances to conform to GAAP. Additional information on the budgetary
basis of accounting can be found in Note 2, Budgetary and Legal Compliance, and in the Required
Supplementary Information section that follows the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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Internal Controls

An internal control structure has been designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from
loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with legal requirements and GAAP. The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. In
addition, the government maintains extensive budgetary controls. The objective of these controls is to ensure
compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Legislature and
Governor.

Financial Condition

Economic Outlook

As 2008 began, more turmoil hit the stock and bond markets as the problems of risky debt enveloped more
parts of the financial community. Both the Federal Reserve and Congress have stepped in to try to give a floor
to the damage done by the credit crisis. The Federal Reserve reduced interest rates by an unprecedented
1.25% in January 2008. A federal tax rebate, approved by Congress, should reach taxpayers beginning in
May 2008.

To help the housing market, especially in California, the $417,000 caps on Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae loans
were raised for one year. Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae are government-sponsored entities that provide money
to the mortgage market by purchasing loans made by banks and other financing agencies. It is hoped these
actions will provide enough economic stimulus to avoid a national recession in 2008.

The UCLA Anderson Forecast is expecting a slow California economy in 2008, but no recession. Personal
income growth is expected to be only 3.5%, compared to 5.6% in 2007. Employment growth for California is
expected to be only 0.5% and the unemployment rate will average 6.0 %.

Budget Outlook
2007-08 Fiscal Year

The 2007 Budget Act was enacted on August 24, 2007, and authorized total spending of $145.5 billion:
$102.2 billion from the General Fund, $29.2 billion from special funds, and $14.1 billion from bond funds. Total
General Fund resources in this budget are projected to be $105.6 billion. Kindergarten through Grade 12
education spending remains the largest area of the budget. However, the bulk of new education spending is for
a 4.53% cost-of-living adjustment. The fastest growing area is correctional programs spending. New costs are
necessary to comply with various health care court cases and implementation of Proposition 83, also known
as “Jessica’s Law”, which addresses monitoring of high-level sex offenders.

Since enactment of the budget, negative budgetary developments, declining receipts and increasing
expenditures have significantly eroded the planned General Fund budgetary reserve of $4.1 billion to an
estimated $872 million. In February 2008, the State sold $3.2 billion of Economic Recovery Bonds to help keep
a positive budget reserve. Nevertheless, the administration now estimates that there will be a $14.5 billion
General Fund deficit by the end of the 2008-09 fiscal year if no actions are taken to reduce spending.

vi
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2008-09 Fiscal Year

The Governor’s Budget for the 2008-09 fiscal year, released on January 10, 2008, seeks total spending (before
proposed budget balancing reductions) of $151.7 billion: $110.1 billion from the General Fund, $27.7 billion
from special funds, and $13.9 billion from bond funds. The proposed 2008-09 General Fund expenditures are
$6.5 billion higher (6.3%) than 2007-08 fiscal year enacted budget amounts. The Administration proposes a
10% across-the-board budget reductions to agencies, departments, and programs which, if adopted, would
amount to approximately $9.1 billion in reduced spending in 2008-09.

Concurrent with the release of his budget proposal, the Governor declared a fiscal emergency and called for a
special session of the Legislature, as authorized by the state Constitution pursuant to Proposition 58
(March 2004), to address the projected 2008-09 budget shortfall and to prevent a cash shortage. To date, total
approved budget solutions enacted during fiscal year 2007-08 amount to $4.8 billion, including the $3.2 billion
additional revenues obtained from the February 14, 2008, sale of deficit financing bonds.

California Strategic Growth Plan

Maintaining and improving the highly valued quality of life and economic growth in California will require
additional investments in the State’s infrastructure. The administration proposes to place bond measures on
the ballot in the 2008 and 2010 general elections for voters to consider authorizing $48.1 billion of new general
obligation bonds for various education, water management, transportation, court and state facility infrastructure
projects. The creation of a Strategic Growth Council is also proposed to coordinate activities and investment of
funds in state-owned and state-funded infrastructure.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of California for its comprehensive annual
financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report.
This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

This CAFR could not have been prepared without the assistance and cooperation of all state agencies and
universities. We wish to thank the State Auditor and her staff for their audit of the financial statements
contained in this report. | am also grateful to the members of my staff for their dedicated efforts and
professionalism.

Sincerely,

Original signed by:

JOHN CHIANG

California State Controller
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g CALIFORNIA STATE AUDITOR
e Deputy Bureau of State Audits

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 300 Sacramento, CA 95814 916.445.0255 916.327.0019 fax www.bsa.ca.gov

Independent Auditor’s Report

THE GOVERNOR AND THE LEGISLATURE OF THE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of California, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the State of California’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the State of
California’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit. We did not audit the following significant amounts in the financial statements of:

Government-wide Financial Statements

e Certain enterprise funds that, in the aggregate, represent 82 percent, 42 percent, and 56 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the business-type activities.

e The University of California, State Compensation Insurance Fund, California Housing Finance
Agency, Public Employees’ Benefits, and certain other funds that, in the aggregate, represent
over 99 percent of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the discretely presented component
units.

Fund Financial Statements

e The following major enterprise funds: Electric Power fund, Water Resources fund, Public
Building Construction fund, and State Lottery fund.

e Certain nonmajor enterprise funds that represent 89 percent, 79 percent, and 88 percent,
respectively, of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the nonmajor enterprise funds.

e The funds of the Public Employees’ Retirement System and the State Teachers’ Retirement
System that, in the aggregate, represent 93 percent, 94 percent, and 75 percent, respectively, of
the assets, net assets, and additions of the fiduciary funds and similar component units.

e The discretely presented component units noted above.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us,
and our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for those funds and entities, is based

on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing



Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of California, as
of June 30, 2007, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, reports on the State’s internal control structure
and on its compliance with laws and regulations will be issued in our single audit report. These
reports arc an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of funding progress, infrastructure information,
budgetary comparison information, reconciliation of budgetary and GAAP-basis fund balances, and
related notes are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We and the other auditors
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the State of California’s basic financial statements. The combining financial
statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining
statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors,
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
The introductory and statistical sections of this report have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements, and
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

BUREAU OF STATE AUDITS

L ln T

JOHN F. COLLINS Ii, CPA
Deputy State Auditor

March 3, 2008



Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The following Management’'s Discussion and Analysis is a required supplement to the State of California’s
financial statements. It describes and analyzes the financial position of the State, providing an overview of the
State’s activities for the year ended June 30, 2007. We encourage readers to consider the information we
present here in conjunction with the information presented in the Controller’s letter of transmittal at the front of
this report and in the State’s financial statements and notes, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights — Primary Government
Government-wide Highlights

The economic growth that the State experienced in recent years began to slow down in the 2006-07 fiscal
year, resulting in a smaller increase in general revenues, primarily in personal income, corporate, and sales tax
revenues. However, the growth in expenses for the State's governmental activities continued. In fact,
expenses for governmental activities exceeded revenues for the year, resulting in a decrease in net assets.
Total expenses for the State’s business-type activities also exceeded revenues for the year; therefore, net
assets for the 2006-07 fiscal year for both governmental and business-type activities decreased by 2.6% from
last year.

Net Assets — The primary government’s net assets as of June 30, 2007, were $46.6 billion. After the total net
assets are reduced by $81.6 billion for investment in capital assets (net of related debt) and by $19.1 billion for
restricted net assets, the resulting unrestricted net assets were a negative $54.1 billion. Restricted net assets
are dedicated for specified uses and are not available to fund current activities. Two-thirds of the negative
$54.1 billion consists of $36.3 billion in outstanding bonded debt issued to build capital assets for school
districts and other local governmental entities. The bonded debt reduces the unrestricted net assets; however,
local governments, not the State, record the capital assets that would offset this reduction.

Changes in Net Assets — The primary government’s total net assets decreased by $1.2 billion (2.6%) during
the year ended June 30, 2007. Net assets of governmental activities decreased by $1.1 billion (3.0%), while
net assets of business-type activities decreased by $140 million (1.2%).

Fund Highlights

Governmental Funds — As of June 30, 2007, the primary government’s governmental funds reported a
combined ending fund balance of $18.0 billion, an increase of $635 million from the previous fiscal year. After
the total fund balance is reduced by $24.5 billion in reserves, the unreserved fund balance totaled a negative
$6.5 billion.

Proprietary Funds — As of June 30, 2007, the primary government’s proprietary funds reported combined
ending net assets of $11.6 billion, a decrease of $411 million from the previous fiscal year. After the total net
assets are reduced by $370 million for investment in capital assets (net of related debt) and expendable
restrictions of $8.6 billion, the unrestricted net assets totaled $2.6 billion.
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Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities

As of June 30, 2007, the primary government’s noncurrent assets totaled $123.5 billion, of which $98.1 billion
is related to capital assets. State highway infrastructure assets of $56.0 billion represent the largest part of the
State’s capital assets.

The primary government’s noncurrent liabilities totaled $98.8 billion, which consists of $50.0 billion in general
obligation bonds, $29.8 billion in revenue bonds, and $19.0 billion in all other noncurrent liabilities.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the section presenting the State’s basic financial statements,
which includes four components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements,
(3) discretely presented component units financial statements, and (4) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains required supplementary information and combining financial statements and schedules.

Government-wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the State’s
finances. The government-wide financial statements do not include fiduciary programs and activities of the
primary government and component units because fiduciary resources are not available to support state
programs.

To help readers assess the State’s economic condition at the end of the fiscal year, the statements provide
both short-term and long-term information about the State’s financial position. These statements are prepared
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, similar to methods
used by most businesses. These statements take into account all revenues and expenses connected with the
fiscal year, regardless of when the State received or paid the cash. The government-wide financial statements
include two statements: the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

e The Statement of Net Assets presents all of the State’s assets and liabilities and reports the difference
between the two as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets indicate whether the
financial position of the State is improving or deteriorating.

e The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the State’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. The State reports changes in net assets as soon as the event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, this statement reports revenues
and expenses for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused vacation leave). This statement also presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each function of the State.

The government-wide financial statements separate into different columns the three types of state programs
and activities: governmental activities, business-type activities, and component units.

e  Governmental activities are mostly supported by taxes, such as personal income and sales and use taxes,
and intergovernmental revenues, primarily federal grants. Most services and expenses normally
associated with state government fall into this activity category, including health and human services,
education (public kindergarten through 12th grade [K-12] schools and institutions of higher education),
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business and transportation, correctional programs, general government, resources, tax relief, state and
consumer services, and interest on long-term debt.

* Business-type activities typically recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges to external users of goods and services. The business-type activities of the State of California
include providing unemployment insurance programs, providing housing loans to California veterans,
providing water to local water districts, providing building aid to school districts, providing services to
California State University students, leasing public assets, selling California State Lottery tickets, and
selling electric power. These activities are carried out with minimal financial assistance from the
governmental activities or general revenues of the State.

e Component units are organizations that are legally separate from the State, but are at the same time
related to the State financially (i.e., the State is financially accountable for them) or the nature of their
relationship with the State is so significant that their exclusion would cause the State’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. The State’s financial statements include the information for blended,
fiduciary, and discretely presented component units.

e Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance a part of the primary
government’s operations. Therefore, for reporting purposes, the State integrates data from blended
component units into the appropriate funds. The Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corporation;
the California State University, Channel Islands Site and Financing authorities; and certain building
authorities that are blended component units of the State are included in the governmental activities.

e  Fiduciary component units are legally separate from the primary government but, due to their fiduciary
nature, are included with the primary government’s fiduciary funds. The Public Employees’ Retirement
System and the State Teachers’ Retirement System are fiduciary component units that are included
with the State’s pension and other employee benefit trust funds, which are not included in the
government-wide financial statements.

e Discretely presented component units are legally separate from the primary government and provide
services to entities and individuals outside the primary government. The activities of discretely
presented component units are presented in a single column in the government-wide financial
statements.

Information on how to obtain financial statements of the individual component units is available from the State
Controller’'s Office, Division of Accounting and Reporting, P.O. Box 942850, Sacramento, CA 94250.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, fiduciary funds and similar
component units, and discretely presented component units. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
State of California, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal and contractual requirements. Following are general descriptions of the
three types of funds.

e Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions that are reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on short-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end
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of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s short-term financing
requirements. This approach is known as the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. These governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the State’s finances, enabling readers to determine whether adequate financial
resources exist to meet the State’s current needs.

Because governmental fund financial statements provide a narrower focus than do government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare governmental fund statements to the governmental activities
information presented in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s short-term financing decisions. Reconciliations
located on the pages immediately following the fund statements show the differences between the
government-wide statements and the governmental fund Balance Sheet and the governmental fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. Primary differences between the
government-wide and fund statements relate to noncurrent assets, such as land and buildings, and
noncurrent liabilities, such as bonded debt and amounts owed for compensated absences and capital
lease obligations, which are reported in the government-wide statements but not in the fund-based
statements.

®  Proprietary funds show activities that operate more like those found in the private sector. The State of
California has two proprietary fund types: enterprise funds and internal service funds.

e  Enterprise funds record activities for which a fee is charged to external users; they are presented as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.

e Internal service funds accumulate and allocate costs internally among the State of California’s various
functions. For example, internal service funds provide information technology, printing, fleet
management, and architectural services primarily for state departments. As a result, their activity is
considered governmental.

*  Fiduciary funds account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the State. Fiduciary funds and
the activities of fiduciary component units are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements,
because the resources of these funds are not available to support State of California programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds and similar component units is similar to that used for proprietary
funds.

Discretely Presented Component Units Financial Statements

As discussed previously, the State has financial accountability for discretely presented component units, which
have certain independent qualities and operate in a similar manner as private-sector businesses. The activities
of the discretely presented component units are classified as enterprise activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements in this publication provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements, which describe particular accounts in more detail, are located immediately following the
discretely presented component units’ financial statements.
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Required Supplementary Information

A section of required supplementary information follows the notes to the basic financial statements in this
publication. This section includes a schedule of funding progress for certain pension trust funds, information on
infrastructure assets based on the modified approach, a budgetary comparison schedule, and a separate
reconciliation of the statutory fund balance for budgetary purposes and the fund balance for the major
governmental funds presented in the governmental fund financial statements.

Combining Financial Statements and Schedules

The Combining Financial Statements and Schedules — Nonmajor and Other Funds section presents combining
statements that provide separate financial statements for nonmajor governmental funds, proprietary funds,
fiduciary funds, and nonmajor component units. The basic financial statements present only summary
information for these entities.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
Net Assets

The primary government’s combined net assets (governmental and business-type activities) decreased 2.6%,
from $47.8 billion as restated at June 30, 2006, to $46.6 billion a year later.

The primary government’s $81.6 billion investment in capital assets, such as land, building, equipment, and
infrastructure (roads, bridges, and other immovable assets), comprise a significant portion of its net assets.
This amount of capital assets is net of any outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The State uses
capital assets when providing services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the State’s investment in capital assets is reported in this publication net of related debt,
please note that the resources needed to repay this debt must come from other sources because the State
cannot use the capital assets themselves to pay off the liabilities.

Another $19.1 billion of the primary government’s net assets represents resources that are externally restricted
as to how they may be used, such as resources pledged to debt service. Internally imposed earmarking of
resources is not presented in this publication as restricted net assets. The State may use a positive balance of
unrestricted net assets of governmental activities to meet its ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. As of
June 30, 2007, governmental activities showed an unrestricted net assets deficit of $56.5 billion and business-
type activities showed unrestricted net assets of $2.4 billion.

A large portion of the negative unrestricted net assets of governmental activities comprises $36.3 billion in
outstanding bonded debt issued to build capital assets for school districts and other local governmental
entities. Because the State does not own these capital assets, neither the assets nor the related bonded debt
is included in the portion of net assets reported as “investment in capital assets, net of related debt.” Instead,
the bonded debt is reported as a non-current liability that reduces the State’s unrestricted net assets. Readers
can expect to see a continued deficit in unrestricted net assets of governmental activities as long as the State
has significant outstanding obligations for school districts and other local governmental entities.
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Table 1 presents condensed financial information derived from the Statement of Net Assets for the primary
government.

Table 1

Net Assets — Primary Government
June 30, 2006 and 2007
(amounts in millions)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2007 2006* 2007 2006* 2007 2006*
ASSETS
Current and other assets ......... $ 51,048 $ 50,240 $ 34234 % 34,683 $ 85282 $ 84,923
Capital assets .............ceeeunnnes 91,818 89,763 6,267 5,849 98,085 95,612
Total assets ........coeerurinenns 142,866 140,003 40,501 40,532 183,367 180,535
LIABILITIES
Noncurrent liabilities ............... 72,970 69,382 25,849 26,093 98,819 95,475
Other liabilities ...................... 34,519 33,411 3,438 3,097 37,957 36,508
Total liabilities ................ 107,489 102,793 29,287 29,190 136,776 131,983
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets
net of related debt ............... 81,353 83,489 208 818 81,561 84,307
Restricted ...........cccvvveeiennnnnn. 10,543 8,431 8,575 8,723 19,118 17,154
Unrestricted ..........ccocvvvneenenee (56,519) (54,710) 2,431 1,801 (54,088) (52,909)
Total net assets .............. $ 35377 $ 37,210 $ 11,214 § 11,342 § 46,591 $ 48,552

* Not restated

Changes in Net Assets

The expenses of the primary government totaled $194.5 billion for the year ended June 30, 2007. Of this
amount, $84.2 billion (43.3%) was funded with program revenues (charges for services or program-specific
grants and contributions), leaving $110.3 billion to be funded with general revenues (mainly taxes). The
primary government’s general revenues of $109.1 billion were less than the unfunded expenses. As a result,
during the year, total net assets decreased by $1.2 billion, or 2.6%.

Of the total decrease, net assets for governmental activities decreased by $1.1 billion, while those for
business-type activities decreased by $140 million. The decrease in governmental activities is primarily due to
increased spending for health and human services, resources, and correctional programs that caused total
expenses to increase more than revenue increased. The decrease in business-type activities is mainly due to
unemployment benefit payments exceeding employer contributions and other revenue for unemployment
programs.
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Table 2 presents condensed financial information derived from the Statement of Activities for the primary
government.

Table 2

Changes in Net Assets — Primary Government
Year ended June 30, 2006 and 2007
(amounts in millions)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
REVENUES
Program revenues:
Charges for Services ...........ccccceeveveenennnn. $ 18,822 $ 19,188 $ 20,614 $ 21,540 $ 39,436 $ 40,728
Operating grants and contributions ........... 43,440 42,254 — — 43,440 42,254
Capital grants and contributions ............... 1,165 1,273 183 57 1,348 1,330
General revenues:
108,016 100,461 — — 108,016 100,461
730 505 — — 730 505
334 292 — — 334 292
Total revenues 172,507 163,973 20,797 21,597 193,304 185,570
EXPENSES
Program expenses:
General government 13,314 9,675 — — 13,314 9,675
Education ........ccooviiiiiiiiiii 61,542 62,653 — — 61,542 62,653
Health and human services ..................... 69,980 65,763 — — 69,980 65,763
RESOUICES ...oviviiniiiieei e, 5,317 4,162 —_ —_ 5,317 4,162
State and consumer services ................... 1,215 596 — — 1,215 596
Business and transportation .................... 9,763 8,809 — — 9,763 8,809
Correctional programs ...........cc.ccceeeeunnnen. 8,945 7,299 — — 8,945 7,299
Taxrelief ... 948 704 — — 948 704
Interest on long-term debt ....................... 2,596 2,894 — — 2,596 2,894
Electric Power ........... — — 5,865 5,342 5,865 5,342
Water Resources — — 952 950 952 950
Public Building Construction .................... — — 335 334 335 334
State Lottery .........cceeenne. — —_ 3,471 3,912 3,471 3,912
Unemployment Programs — — 9,136 8,585 9,136 8,585
Nonmajor enterprise ..........ccooeevveevinennnes — — 1,148 814 1,148 814
Total expenses 173,620 162,555 20,907 19,937 194,527 182,492
Excess (deficiency) before transfers ... (1,113) 1,418 (110) 1,660 (1,223) 3,078
Transfers .....cooveviiiiiiii 30 23 (30) (23) — —
Special item................. — 1,218 — — — 1,218
Change innetassets .........ccccccvieeninnnnnn. (1,083) 2,659 (140) 1,637 (1,223) 4,296
Net assets, beginning of year (restated) ... 36,460 34,551 11,354 9,705 47,814 44,256
Net assets, end of year .......c..ccevvveniinnnnns $ 35377 $ 37,210 $ 11,214 § 11,342 § 46,591 $ 48,552
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Governmental Activities

Governmental activities expenses totaled $173.6 billion. Program revenues, including $44.6 billion received in
federal grants, funded $63.4 billion (36.5%) of that amount, leaving $110.2 billion to be funded with general
revenues (mainly taxes). However, general revenues and transfers for governmental activities totaled only
$109.1 billion, so governmental activities’ total net assets decreased by $1.1 billion, or 3.0%, during the year
ended June 30, 2007. The State used reserves to meet its cash flow needs.

Chart 1 presents a comparison of governmental activities expenses by program, with related revenues.

Chart 1

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2007
(amounts in billions)

General government
Education

Health and human services
Business and transportation

Other
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- Expenses |:| Program Revenues

For the year ended June 30, 2007, total state tax revenues collected for governmental activities increased by
7.5% over the prior year. The largest increase in state tax revenue occurred in other taxes. Fuel tax revenue
previously reported as additions in an agency fund is now reported as other taxes. Certain fuel tax revenue
was reclassified from sales and use taxes to other taxes. Personal income, corporation, and sales tax revenue
also increased modestly during the year, due to job growth and increased personal income and retail sales.

Overall expenses for governmental activities increased by $11.0 billion (6.8%) over the prior year. The largest
increases in expenses were a $4.2 billion increase in health and human services spending and a $3.6 billion
increase in general government. The increase in health and human services spending was the result of
increased costs and use of medical services, increased rates for physicians and certain other providers,
significant policy changes in Medi-Cal, and ongoing growth in caseloads. The increase in general government
spending was the result of the inclusion of fuel tax revenue apportionment payments to local governments
previously reported as deductions in an agency fund.
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Charts 2 and 3 present the percentage of total expenses for each governmental activities program and the
percentage of total revenues by source.

Chart 2 Chart 3
Expenses by Program Revenues by Source
Year ended June 30, 2007 Year ended June 30, 2007
(as a percent) (as a percent)
Grants and
Education Business and s Contributions
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35.5 % Transportation
6 Taxes
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Other 10.9 %
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40.3 % 30.9 %

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities expenses totaled $20.9 billion. Program revenues of $20.8 billion were generated
primarily from charges for services that fully paid these expenses. Consequently, business-type activities’ total
net assets decreased by $140 million, or 1.2%, during the year ended June 30, 2007. Most of the decrease
was due to a $118 million decrease in the unemployment programs' net assets, discussed in more detail in the
Fund Financial Analysis section under Proprietary Funds.

Chart 4 presents a two-year comparison of the expenses of the State’s business-type activities.

Chart 4

Expenses — Business-type Activities — Two-Year Comparison
Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2007
(amounts in billions)
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Fund Financial Analysis

The State’s slowing economy primarily affected governmental funds, which rely heavily on taxes to support the
majority of the State’s services and programs. Although tax revenue increased during the year, the increase
was lower than the dramatic increases the State experienced in the last three years. The expenditures of the
governmental funds increased at a higher rate than revenues. On the other hand, none of the major proprietary
funds had total revenues that were significantly different from total expenses during the year ended
June 30, 2007; however, increased unemployment did result in Unemployment Programs Fund expenses
exceeding its revenues.

Governmental Funds

The governmental funds’ Balance Sheet reported $55.4 billion in assets, $37.4 billion in liabilities, and
$18.0 billion in fund balance as of June 30, 2007. The largest change in account balances was a $1.1 billion
decrease in cash and pooled investments. This decrease is mainly the result of the timing of receipts and
disbursement at year end and of Assembly Bill 1802, enacted in July 2006, that authorized all student fees for
California State University programs previously deposited in the State Treasury (cash and pooled investments)
to be deposited in local banks (investments). This bill also results in increased investments for the universities
reported in nonmajor governmental funds. Within the total fund balance, $24.5 billion has been set aside in
reserve. The reserved amounts are not available for new spending because they have been committed for
outstanding contracts and purchase orders ($6.5 billion), noncurrent interfund receivables and loans receivable
($5.0 billion), continuing appropriations ($11.9 billion), and debt service ($1.1 billion). The unreserved balance
of the governmental funds is a negative $6.5 billion.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of the governmental funds shows
$172.3 billion in revenues, $182.2 billion in expenditures, and a net $10.5 billion in receipts from other
financing sources. The ending fund balance of the governmental funds for the year ended June 30, 2007, was
$18.0 billion, a $635 million increase over the previous year’s restated ending fund balance of $17.4 billion.
Although the State's economy showed signs of slowing in the 2006-07 fiscal year, there was enough growth in
personal income and taxable sales to result in increased personal income and sales and use taxes in the
governmental funds. Personal income taxes, which account for 49.4% of tax revenues and 30.9% of total
governmental fund revenues, increased by $2.5 billion over the previous fiscal year. Sales and use taxes,
which account for 32.9% of tax revenues and 20.6% of total govermental fund revenues, increased by $1.2
billion.

The State’s major governmental funds are the General Fund, the Federal Fund, and the Transportation
Construction Fund. The General Fund ended the fiscal year with a fund deficit of $1.9 billion. The Federal Fund
and the Transportation Construction Fund ended the fiscal year with fund balances of $38 million and
$5.9 billion, respectively. The nonmajor governmental funds ended the year with a total fund balance of
$14.0 billion.

General Fund: As shown on the Balance Sheet, the General Fund (the State’s main operating fund) ended the
fiscal year with assets of $16.5 billion, liabilities of $18.4 billion, and fund balance reserves of $2.6 billion,
leaving the General Fund with an unreserved fund deficit of $4.5 billion. The largest change in asset accounts
was in cash and pooled investments, which decreased from $11.7 billion to $6.0 billion. In addition to the
change for California State University student fees discussed above, the decrease in cash and pooled
investments is also due to current-year expenditures and transfers exceeding revenue collections.
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The largest change in liability account balances was a decrease in the amount due to other governments (from
$4.6 billion to $4.1 billion). The decrease in the amount due to other governments was caused mainly by the
inflation of last year's balance for the accrual of larger-than-usual state-mandated cost reimbursements to
schools and other local governments paid in the 2006-07 fiscal year budget.

As shown on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of the governmental
funds, the General Fund had $96.3 billion in revenues, $96.2 billion in expenditures, and a net $4.7 billion
disbursement from other financing sources (uses) for the year ended June 30, 2007. The largest source of
General Fund revenue was $93.7 billion in taxes, comprised primarily of personal income taxes ($52.4 billion)
and sales and use taxes ($27.4 billion).

The taxes with the largest increase in revenues were personal income taxes, which increased by $2.4 billion
(4.9%). This increase can be attributed to a small growth in the job market and increased personal income.
Corportation taxes also increased by $500 million (4.7%), to $11.2 billion. The decrease in sales and use tax
revenue in the General Fund is mainly due to amounts that were previously reported in the General Fund being
reported in nonmajor governmental funds for the repayment of the deficit-financing bonds and deferred
Proposition 42 transfers for transportation projects.

General Fund expenditures increased by $7.0 billion, to $96.2 billion. The programs with the largest increases
were education, which increased by $2.7 billion, to $49.3 billion, and health and human services, which
increased by $2.8 billion, to $28.9 billion. The transfers out of the General Fund to other funds increased by
$3.3 billion, to $6.5 billion. The General Fund’s ending fund balance (including reserves) for the year ended
June 30, 2007, was a negative $1.9 billion, a decrease of $4.6 billion over the previous year’s ending fund
balance of $2.7 billion.

The increase in education expenditures consists of increased funding for enroliment growth and cost-of-living
adjustments; elimination of deficit funding and other historical revenue-limit reductions; and expansion of after
school, child care, and preschool programs. Health and human service expenditures increased, primarily due
to ongoing growth in medical and social services caseloads, increases in costs and use of medical services,
rate increases for physicians and certain other providers, and a number of significant policy changes in Medi-
Cal. Transfers out of the General Fund increased mainly as a result of the partial repayment of deferred
Proposition 42 transfers to the Transportation Construction Fund. Proposition 42 required, beginning in
2003-04, that revenue from the sales tax on gasoline that previously went to the General Fund be transferred
to the Transportation Construction Fund for state and local transportation projects. However, the General Fund
transfers were partially suspended in 2003-04 and fully suspended in 2004-05, as allowed by Proposition 42,
because the transfers would have had a negative fiscal impact on the General Fund.

Federal Fund: This fund reports federal grant revenues and the related expenditures to support the grant
programs. The largest of these program areas is health and human services, which accounted for $32.4 billion
(74.1%) of the total $43.7 billion in fund expenditures. The Medical Assistance program and the Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families program are included in this program area. Education programs also constituted
a large part of the fund’s expenditures—$6.7 billion (15.3%)—most of which were apportionments made to
local educational agencies (school districts, county offices of education, community colleges, etc.). The Federal
Fund’s revenues and expenditures increased by approximately the same amount, with revenues increasing
slightly more than expenditures, resulting in a $3 million increase in fund balance from the prior year.

Transportation Construction Fund: This fund accounts for fuel taxes, bond proceeds, and other revenues used
for highway and passenger rail construction. Expenditures increased by 62.3%, while revenues increased by
48.1% from the prior year. The increased revenues and a majority of the increased expenditures is attributable
to the inclusion of certain fuel tax revenue and apportionment payments to local governments that were

15



State of California Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

previously accounted for as additions and deductions in an agency fund rather than as revenues and
expenditures. The remaining increase in expenditures is caused by the reclassification of certain nonmajor
governmental funds. Fund expenditures of $7.3 billion exceeded revenues by $1.8 billion. However, the fund
balance increased by $1.5 billion, due to the increase in previously deferred Proposition 42 transfers from the
General Fund.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds: In general, the slowing economy did not have as significant an effect on enterprise funds as
it did on governmental funds. Most major enterprise funds’ activity remained stable, as revenues approximated
expenses, resulting in only a $140 million decrease in net assets.

As shown on the Statement of Net Assets of the proprietary funds, total assets of the enterprise funds were
$41.0 billion as of June 30, 2007. Of this amount, current assets totaled $13.4 billion and noncurrent assets
totaled $27.6 billion. The largest change in asset account balances was a $726 million decrease in noncurrent
recoverable power costs (costs that are recoverable through future billings) in the Electric Power Fund. This
decrease was due to current year collections of recoverable power costs exceeding current year costs,
reducing recoveries due in future billing periods. The total liabilities of the enterprise funds were $29.8 billion.
The largest liability accounts were revenue bonds payable of $21.9 billion and general obligation bonds
payable of $1.8 billion. Although there was activity during the year—new bonds issued, redemptions, and
defeasances—the change in the ending balance of these accounts was minimal.

Total net assets of the enterprise funds were $11.2 billion as of June 30, 2007. Total net assets consisted of
three segments: expendable restricted net assets of $8.6 billion; investment in capital assets (net of related
debt) of $208 million; and unrestricted net assets of $2.4 billion. The Unemployment Programs Fund had the
largest net assets, with $5.6 billion (50% of the enterprise funds’ total net assets). The expendable restricted
net assets of the Unemployment Programs Fund decreased by $118 million.

As shown on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets of the proprietary
funds, the enterprise funds ended the year with operating revenues of $19.1 billion, operating expenses of
$18.4 billion, and net disbursements from other transactions of $985 million. The largest sources of operating
revenue were unemployment and disability insurance receipts of $8.6 billion in the Unemployment Programs
Fund and power sales of $4.8 billion collected by the Electric Power Fund. The largest operating expenses
were distributions to beneficiaries of $8.9 billion by the Unemployment Programs Fund and power purchases
(net of recoverable costs) of $4.8 billion by the Electric Power Fund. The ending net assets of the enterprise
funds for the year ended June 30, 2007, were $11.2 billion, or $140 million less than the previous year’s
restated ending fund balance of $11.4 billion. The decrease was mainly caused by an excess of unemployment
claim payments over unemployment insurance receipts as a result of the State's increased unemployment. The
employer's contribution rate is currently set at the highest rate allowed, so future increases in unemployment
would continue to deplete the current reserves in the Unemployment Programs Fund.

Internal Service Funds: Total net assets of the internal service funds were $394 million as of June 30, 2007.

These net assets consist of two segments: investment in capital assets (net of related debt) of $162 million and
unrestricted net assets of $232 million.
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Fiduciary Funds

The State of California has four types of fiduciary funds: private purpose trust funds, pension and other
employee benefit trust funds, investment trust funds, and agency funds. The private purpose trust funds ended
the fiscal year with net assets of $2.7 billion. The pension and other employee benefit trust funds ended the
fiscal year with net assets of $432.3 billion. The State’s only investment trust fund, the Local Agency
Investment Fund, ended the fiscal year with net assets of $19.7 billion. Agency funds act as clearing accounts
and thus do not have net assets.

For the year ended June 30, 2007, the fiduciary funds’ combined net assets were $455 billion, a $73.5 billion
increase from prior year net assets. The increase in net assets was mainly attributable to investment income
and an increase in the fair value of investments of retirement funds.

The Economy for the Year Ending June 30, 2007

As the 2006-07 fiscal year began, the economy was slowing down, but still moving. Several of the indicators of
the slowdown were signaling the way: interest rates had been rising as a result of tightening in the previous
year by the Federal Reserve, oil and gasoline prices were continuing a general rise, and residential
construction was down 38% from the prior year. Surprisingly though, the overall employment appeared
relatively solid. In July 2006, California’s year-over-year employment growth was 1.7%, while the State’s
unemployment rate, at 4.8%, was the lowest since March of 2001.

In December 2006, employment was still growing by 1.3% on a year-over-year comparison, but problems in
the real estate market had started to emerge. Housing sales were down 22% compared to December 2005,
but statewide prices continued to rise—though by only a modest 3.5% increase. In some regions of California,
and particularly in San Diego, prices were beginning to decline. More troubling signs were also being seen, as
foreclosures in California more than doubled in the last quarter of 2006 compared to the last quarter of 2005.
The problems were concentrated in the subprime portion of the market—Iloans made to high-risk borrowers. In
particular, those subprime loans that were experiencing a “reset” to higher interest rates were seeing
escalating delinquency rates.

Evidence of a major crack in the foundations of the real estate boom appeared in February 2007. New Century
Financial, a California company that was the nation’s second-largest player in subprime lending, announced
“accounting errors” that would require the restatement of its 2006 earnings and a loss for the final quarter of
2006. By early April, the company had filed for bankruptcy.

California was at the center of the real estate and financial turmoil as the fiscal year ended in June 2007. The
California Association of Realtors reported that in the second quarter of 2007, an estimated 15% of all
mortgages in California were subprime. Around the same time period, the Mortgage Bankers Association
reported that California represented 17% of subprime loans and over 19% of the foreclosure starts on
subprime loans.

Nevertheless, it still appeared that the damage from real estate activities would be confined to real estate
sales, construction, and the subprime market. As the fiscal year ended, employment was growing at 1.1%;
unemployment was increasing, but was still low at 5.3%. Most of the employment growth was in Education and
Health services, Leisure and Hospitality services, and Professional and Business Services.
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General Fund Budget Highlights
The original General Fund budget of $102.1 billion was increased by $865 million due to miscellaneous
augmentations for emergencies. During the 2006-07 fiscal year, General Fund actual expenditures were

$101.5 billion, $1.5 billion less than the final budgeted amounts.

Table 3

General Fund Original and Final Budgets
Year ended June 30, 2007
(amounts in millions)

Increase/
Original Final (Decrease)
Budgeted amounts
State and CONSUMET SEIVICES .....uiveeeiiieeeiiet i et eee e ee e eeeeaiieees $ 645 $ 602 $ (43)
Business and transportation ...........oo.oiii i 2,649 2,649 0
RESOUICES ...t et 1,824 1,720 (104)
Health and human ServiCeSs ...........ivuiiiiiiiie e 29,526 29,866 340
Correctional Programs .........cuue.ieen ettt 8,786 9,289 503
EAUCALION ...t 49,251 49,321 70
General government:

TAX TEIET et 977 981 4
DEbt SEIVICE ... 3,388 3,402 14
Other general gQOVEIMMENT .........iuitiiit i 5,084 5,165 81
TORal .. $ 102,130 $ 102,995 $ 865

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

The State’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2007,
amounted to $98.1 billion (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
state highway infrastructure, collections, buildings and other depreciable property, and construction in
progress. Depreciable property includes buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, personal
property, intangible assets, certain infrastructure assets, certain books, and other capitalized and depreciable
property. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and can be preserved for a greater
number of years than most capital assets. Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks,
drainage systems, and lighting systems.

Table 4 presents a summary of the primary government’s capital assets for governmental and business-type
activities.
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Table 4

Capital Assets
Year ended June 30, 2007
(amounts in millions)

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

LaNG - e e $ 15510 $ 47 % 15,557
State highway infrastructure ............ccooouiiiiiiii e 55,991 — 55,991
Collections — NoNdepreciable ..............ooeiiiiiiiiiiiee e 21 — 21
Buildings and other depreciable property ............ccccoiiiiiiiiii 21,009 8,662 29,671
Less: accumulated depreciation ..............cooouiiiiiiiiiiii (8,590) (3,618) (12,208)
CONSrUCHON IN PrOGrESS ..cvvuiiin ittt e e 7,877 1,177 9,054

TORAL ..o e $ 91,818 $ 6,268 $ 98,086

The budget authorized $2.1 billion for the State’s capital outlay program in the 2006-07 fiscal year, not
including funding for state highway infrastructure, K-12 schools, state conservancies, and state water projects.
State highway infrastructure assets are discussed in more detail in the Required Supplementary Information
that follows the notes to the financial statements. Of the $2.1 billion authorized, $234 million was from the
General Fund; $393 million was from lease-revenue bonds; $1.3 billion was from proceeds of various general
obligation bonds; and $236 million was from reimbursements, federal funds, and special funds. The major
capital projects authorized include:

e $1.2 billion for numerous construction projects within the University of California, the California State
University, and the California Community Colleges;

* $217 million for the Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation for waste-water and potable water
treatment projects; housing for inmates with mental health needs; and critical fire, life, and safety projects;

e $161 million for the Department of Forestry and Fire Protection to replace 14 fire stations and two
conservation camps, address other significant health and safety issues, and remedy critical infrastructure
deficiencies at emergency response facilities; and

*  $102 million for the Department of Developmental Services for improvements at Porterville Developmental
Center.

Note 7, Capital Assets, includes additional information on the State’s capital assets.
Modified Approach for Infrastructure Assets

The State has adopted the Modified Approach as an alternative to depreciating the cost of its infrastructure
(state roadways and bridges). Under the Modified Approach, the State will not report depreciation expense for
roads and bridges but will capitalize all costs that add to the capacity and efficiency of State-owned roads and
bridges. All maintenance and preservation costs will be expensed and not capitalized. Under the Modified
Approach, the State must maintain an asset management system and demonstrate that it is preserving the
infrastructure at or above established condition levels. The State is responsible for maintaining 49,477 lane
miles and 12,155 bridges.
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During the 2006-07 fiscal year, the actual amount spent on preservation was 74.1% of the estimated budgeted
amount needed to maintain the infrastructure assets at the established condition levels. Although the amount
spent fell short of the budgeted amount, the assessed conditions of the State’s bridges and roadways are
better than the established condition baselines.

The Required Supplementary Information includes additional information on how the State uses the modified
approach for infrastructure assets and it presents the established condition standards, condition assessments,
and preservation costs.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2007, the primary government had total bonded debt outstanding of $83.2 billion. Of this amount,
$52.2 billion (62.8%) represents general obligation bonds, which are backed by the full faith and credit of the
State. Included in the $52.2 billion of general obligation bonds is $9.0 billion of Economic Recovery bonds that
are secured by a pledge of revenues derived from dedicated sales and use taxes. The current portion of
general obligation bonds outstanding is $2.2 billion and the long-term portion is $50.0 billion. The remaining
$31.0 billion (37.2%) of bonded debt outstanding represents revenue bonds, which are secured solely by
specified revenue sources. The current portion of revenue bonds outstanding is $1.2 billion and the long-term
portion is $29.8 billion.

Table 5 presents a summary of the primary government’s long-term obligations for governmental and
business-type activities.

Table 5

Long-term Obligations
Year ended June 30, 2007
(amounts in millions)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Government-wide noncurrent liabilities
General obligation bonds ............couiiiiiiiiii $ 48,224  $ 1,818 § 50,042
ReVENUE DONAS ......ovniiiii s 7,883 21,891 29,774
Certificates of participation and commercial paper ...........ccccoceevveennnnens 106 180 286
Capital lease obligations ............coiiiiiiiiiiii e 4,047 — 4,047
Other noncurrent liabilities ...........coooviiiiiiiii e 12,710 1,960 14,670
Total noncurrent liabilities ..................c.c..ccoiiiii 72,970 25,849 98,819
Current portion of long-term obligations ...............cccooooiiiiiiiin . 4,576 1,842 6,418
Total long-term obligations .................ccccoeeiiiiiieeiiii e $ 77,546 $ 27,691 $ 105,237

The primary government’s total long-term obligations increased during the year ended June 30, 2007. The
largest change in governmental activities’ long-term obligations is an increase of $3.3 billion in general
obligation bonds payable.

Note 10, Long-term Obligations, and Notes 11 through 16 include additional information on the State’s
long-term obligations.
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The State’s general obligation bond credit ratings remained unchanged during fiscal year 2006-07. The current
ratings from the three credit rating agencies are as follows: Standard & Poor's — “A+”, Moody’s — “A1”, and
Fitch — “A+".

Recent Economic Events and Future Budgets
Recent Economic Conditions

Real estate market troubles continue to dominate the economic news of both California and the nation. Since
the beginning of the 2007-08 fiscal year, the problems of the real estate market have spread into the larger
U.S. financial market and even into global financial markets.

In late July 2007, a California-based business, Countrywide Financial—the largest mortgage lender in the
nation—sent a tremor through the stock and bond markets when it revealed that delinquencies in both its prime
and subprime borrowers were rising. Rising concerns among investors about the risks associated with
mortgages and mortgage-backed securities threatened to freeze credit markets.

The Federal Reserve responded and took a series of quick actions to try to calm the markets. On
August 10, 2007, the Federal Reserve said it was “providing liquidity to facilitate the orderly functioning of
financial markets.” On August 17, 2007, the Federal Reserve reduced interest rates by 0.5% and assured
banks that they could come to the Federal Reserve to alleviate funding needs caused by “dislocations in
money and credit markets.” On September 18, 2007, the Federal Reserve dropped interest rates another
0.5%, followed by 0.25% reductions at each of its Federal Open Market Committee meetings in October and
December 2007.

By fall 2007, the turmoil in U.S. markets was mirrored in European markets. A British bank, Northern Rock, had
to be bailed out by British regulators in September due to its investments in the U.S. subprime market.

As 2007 closed, employment growth in California was slowing and unemployment was rising. By the end of
December 2007, employment growth in California had fallen to 0.6% from the 1.1% seen in July 2007, while
unemployment had risen to 5.9% from the 5.4% of July.

As 2008 opened, more turmoil hit the stock and bond markets as the problems of risky debt affected more
parts of the financial community. Both the Federal Reserve and Congress have stepped in to try to give a floor
to the damage done by the credit crisis. The Federal Reserve reduced interest rates by an unprecedented
1.25% in January 2008. A federal tax rebate was approved by Congress, the proceeds of which should reach
taxpayers in May 2008. Also to help the housing market, especially in California, the caps on Freddie Mac and
Fannie Mae loans were raised for one year. It is hoped that these actions will be enough of an economic
stimulus to avoid a national recession in 2008.

California’s Future Budgets

California’s 2007-08 Budget Act was enacted on August 24, 2007. The total spending plan adopted for the
State was $145.5 billion, including the General Fund, special funds, and bond funds. The General Fund’s
available resources and expenditures were projected to be $105.6 billion and $102.2 billion, respectively. The
adopted budget included the largest reserve of any budget act in State history—a $4.1 billion reserve (Reserve
for Economic Uncertainties of $2.6 billion and $1.5 billion in the Budget Stabilization Account). However, a
current projection by the Legislative Analyst’'s Office (LAO), California’s nonpartisan fiscal and policy advisor,
shows that rather than ending the 2007-08 fiscal year with a $4.1 billion reserve, the General Fund will have an
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estimated deficit of $106 million. The deterioration of the budget outlook is due to a worsening economy, lower-
than-expected revenue collections, delayed benefits from one-time budget-balancing solutions, and higher
costs.

General Fund revenues come predominately from taxes, with personal income taxes expected to provide 54%
of the revenues. California’s major taxes (personal income, sales, and corporation taxes) are projected to
supply approximately 94% of the General Fund’s budgeted resources in the 2007-08 fiscal year. Since the
enactment of the budget, the State’s weakening economy—particularly the depressed real estate market and
high energy and gasoline prices—has caused year-to-date cash receipts for tax revenues to fall considerably
short of budget estimates

Governor’s Proposed Budget for 2008-09

The Governor released his proposed budget on January 10, 2008. The 2008-09 proposed spending plan
(assuming all proposed budget reductions are enacted) totals $141 billion. This spending plan represents
estimated General Fund expenditures of $101 billion, special fund expenditures of $26.2 billion, and bond fund
expenditures of $13.8 billion. Proposed General Fund expenditures are 2.3% less than the $103.4 billion
expenditures estimated for the 2007-08 fiscal year.

The Governor’s budget projects to end the 2007-08 fiscal year with a $2.8 billion General Fund reserve in the
Special Fund for Economic Uncertainties. The Governor suspended the annual transfer to the Budget
Stabilization Account required by Proposition 58, passed by California’s voters in 2004. Proposition 58 requires
that, beginning in the 2007-08 fiscal year, the State transfer into the Budget Stabilization Account by
September 30 of each year a specified portion of estimated General Fund revenues until the account balance
reaches $8 billion or 5% of the estimated General Fund revenues, whichever is greater.

In the 2008-09 Overview of the Governor’s Budget, the LAO states that the Governor's budget revenue
forecast is generally reasonable and the spending proposals are built upon solid assumptions about caseload
and program requirements. However, the LAO added that, considering recent cash trends and economic
reports, there are some risks in the Governor’'s assumptions. The proposed budget continues to demonstrate
an annual operating shortfall, whereby the General Fund’s operating expenses exceed its revenue.

Proposed budget-balancing solutions include issuing $3.2 billion of additional deficit-financing bonds (actually
issued on February 14, 2008); suspending the planned supplementary payments for early redemption of
$1.5 billion of outstanding deficit-financing bonds; accruing in fiscal year 2008-09 $2.0 billion of the personal
income and corporation tax revenue that will be received in fiscal year 2009-10; reducing K-14 education
spending by $400 million and suspending the Proposition 98 minimum-funding guarantee, resulting in $4.0
billion additional savings in education spending; and reducing spending in most state programs through $4.0
billion in across-the-board reductions.

Requests for Information

The State Controller’'s Office designed this financial report to provide interested parties with a general overview
of the State of California’s finances. Address questions concerning the information provided in this report or
requests for additional information to the State Controller’'s Office, Division of Accounting and Reporting,
P.O. Box 942850, Sacramento, California 94250. This report is also available on the Controller's Office
Web site at www.sco.ca.gov.
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Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and pooled investments

Amount on deposit with U.S. Treasury .................

Investments ................
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled investments

Investments

Due from other governments

Net investment in direct financing leases ..............

Receivables (net)
Internal balances
Due from primary government
Due from other governments

Prepaid items

Inventories ..................
Recoverable power costs (net)
Other current assets

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled investments

Investments

Loans receivable
Investments ................

Net investment in direct financing leases ..............

Receivables (net)
Loans receivable
Recoverable power costs (net)
Deferred charges
Capital assets:

State highway infrastructure
Collections — nondepreciable

Buildings and other depreciable property ...........

Less: accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress
Other noncurrent assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

26

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

23,818,784 $ 5,292,421 § 29,111,205 2,155,052
— 3,455,035 3,455,035 —
2,186,949 570,525 2,757,474 12,641,306
— 1,897,014 1,897,014 8,316

— 636 636 45,981

— 55,965 55,965 —

— 339,025 339,025 —
10,241,248 558,483 10,799,731 3,610,632
91,026 (91,026) — —

— — — 258,295
10,120,093 162,530 10,282,623 630,403
86,914 9,208 96,122 3,468
28,309 22,602 50,911 143,567

— 610,000 610,000 —

333,631 91,545 425,176 197,343
46,906,954 12,973,963 59,880,917 19,694,363
— 1,116,426 1,116,426 128,334

— 734,112 734,112 63,184

— 512,173 512,173 —

— 1,533,945 1,533,945 37,532,121

— 6,130,815 6,130,815 —
1,508,848 26,854 1,535,702 968,072
2,557,843 3,340,818 5,898,661 7,487,539
— 6,503,000 6,503,000 —

74,615 1,354,142 1,428,757 59,083
15,510,432 46,766 15,557,198 762,229
55,991,217 — 55,991,217 —
20,682 29 20,711 270,097
21,008,680 8,661,646 29,670,326 27,071,887
(8,589,745) (3,617,654) (12,207,399) (12,538,684)
7,876,896 1,176,650 9,053,546 3,966,242
— 6,903 6,903 354,751
95,959,468 27,526,625 123,486,093 66,124,855
142,866,422 $ 40,500,588 $ 183,367,010 85,819,218

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ............cooooiiii
Due to component units ...........ccccoviiieeininneinneennn
Due to other governments ..........c...cooeiviiiiiennnes
Dividends payable .............cocooveiiiiin
Deferred revenue ............cccceoviiiiiiiiiiiiiinieeinn.
Tax overpayments ..........ccceueveeermiieenennneeeeennnn
DEPOSItS ..ueviee i
Contracts and notes payable .............c.ccoeeeeeeennnn.
Advance collections ...............ccceiiiin,
Interest payable ..o
Securities lending obligations ............c..ccccciviins
Benefits payable ..........ccooiiiiiiiii
Current portion of long-term obligations ...............
Other current liabilities ...............cccooeveeiiiininnnn.
Total current liabilities ..............cco.coeiii.

Noncurrent liabilities:
Loans payable ..........ccooeiiiiiiiiiii
Benefits payable ...........cccoooiiiiiii
Lottery prizes and annuities ..........
Compensated absences payable

Certificates of participation, commercial paper,

and other borrowings ...........ccccceveeiinineieinnnnnn.
Capital lease obligations ...............ccciiiiiiinnnnnnn.
General obligation bonds payable .......................
Revenue bonds payable .................ccccoiiiiinl
Other noncurrent liabilities ..............cccooeeiiinnnn.

Total noncurrent liabilities ..............ccceeennnn,

Total liabilities .......cccceiiieiimiiiiiien,
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt ....
Restricted:
Nonexpendable — endowments ........................
Expendable:
Endowments and gifts ..........cccccoeviiiiiiicnnnn.
Business and transportation ............cc.ccoeeeeen.
RESOUICES ..ot
Health and human services ..
Education ........cccoveeiiieeeee e
General government ...........cccooeeeeviniciinienenne
Unemployment programs ..... e ———
Workers' compensation liability ........................
Total expendable ..........cccceeevieeiicieeeiieeeees
Unrestricted ......co.ovviiiiiiiei

Total net assets .......ccceevviiriiireir e,

Total liabilities and net assets ....................

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

14,272,044  $ 701,959 § 14,974,003 $ 1,968,021
252,732 5,563 258,295 —
8,512,815 116,274 8,629,089 38
— — — 3,100
— 58,360 58,360 812,025
4,135,882 — 4,135,882 —
327,082 3,868 330,950 526,238
71,495 — 71,495 10,598
649,066 25,712 674,778 140,460
770,737 186,649 957,386 149,802
— — — 6,720,587
— 406,740 406,740 2,236,720
4,575,389 1,842,565 6,417,954 1,704,571
951,966 90,378 1,042,344 1,492,033
34,519,208 3,438,068 37,957,276 15,764,193
925,855 — 925,855 —
— 8,881 8,881 17,004,589
— 1,382,603 1,382,603 —
1,900,114 27,578 1,927,692 212,883
106,119 179,782 285,901 128,925
4,047,186 — 4,047,186 2,115,552
48,224,339 1,817,790 50,042,129 —
7,882,593 21,891,372 29,773,965 14,171,930
9,884,140 540,822 10,424,962 1,665,706
72,970,346 25,848,828 98,819,174 35,299,585
107,489,554 29,286,896 136,776,450 51,063,778
81,352,744 208,268 81,561,012 9,973,008
— — — 3,295,495
— — —_ 7,675,480
767,878 140,750 908,628 1,392,047
1,822,499 1,701,060 3,523,559 —
2,639,357 93,036 2,732,393 —
1,721,735 341,686 2,063,421 1,591,151
3,493,338 678,372 4,171,710 852,703
98,795 5,620,028 5,718,823 —
— — —_ 3,808,975
10,543,602 8,574,932 19,118,534 15,320,356
(56,519,478) 2,430,492 (54,088,986) 6,166,581
35,376,868 11,213,692 46,590,560 34,755,440
142,866,422 $ 40,500,588 $ 183,367,010 $ 85,819,218

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2007 Program Revenues
(amounts in thousands)
Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government
Governmental activities:
General government .............ecceieieeeereieeeneeninn. $ 13,313,463 $ 4,490,117  $ 1,086,838 $ —
Education .......cc.ooiiiiiiiiii 61,542,105 2,689,906 6,352,236 —
Health and human services .............cccceeenennn. 69,979,980 4,751,011 33,538,232 —
RESOUICES ..cvvvieiiiie e 5,316,769 2,110,593 501,393 —
State and consumer Services ............c.ccceeeeunnns 1,214,740 704,512 31,045 —
Business and transportation ...............ccc.ooeeenn. 9,763,200 4,040,268 1,735,395 1,164,526
Correctional programs ............cccceevevveeeniinennnnn. 8,945,325 30,821 194,963 —
Taxrelief ..o 948,127 5,049 — —
Interest on long-term debt ...........cooiiiiiiininnne. 2,596,316 — — —
Total governmental activities ........................ 173,620,025 18,822,277 43,440,102 1,164,526
Business-type activities:
Electric POWer .......cocooiiiiiiii e 5,865,000 5,865,000 — —
Water RESOUICeS ......cceuvviviiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeenen, 951,590 951,590 — —
Public Building Construction ...................cooeeee.. 334,777 396,895 — —
State Lottery ..o 3,470,615 3,461,699 — —
Unemployment Programs ............ccooeeveeeneeneens 9,136,218 9,017,969 — —
High Technology Education .............c...ccoeieennn. 22,704 22,966 — —
State University Dormitory Building
Maintenance and Equipment ........................ 844,798 554,851 — —
State Water Pollution Control Revolving ............ 12,702 78,564 — 182,989
Housing Loan .........ouuiiiiiiiiiiii e 127,206 130,293 — —
Other enterprise programs ...........c.ccceeeeeevrnennnn. 141,859 134,018 — —
Total business-type activities ........................ 20,907,469 20,613,845 — 182,989
Total primary government .............ccceeuues $ 194,527,494 $ 39,436,122 $ 43,440,102 $ 1,347,515
Component units:
University of California ..............cccevvieeeeeeeeeeenenn. $ 19,572,249 $ 10,714,361 $ 7,475,951 $ 216,783
State Compensation Insurance Fund ................... 3,791,291 3,477,665 — —
California Housing Finance Agency ..................... 536,157 516,398 114,235 —
Public Employees' Benefit Fund .............ccccceenee. 1,903,139 1,649,056 — —
Nonmajor component units .............coeeeieinieiinenss 1,961,587 1,187,287 518,346 14,780
Total component units ..........cceevvvmeenrinennes, $ 27,764,423 $ 17,544,767 $ 8,108,532 $ 231,563

General revenues:
Personal iNCOME taXES ... ..oviei i e e e e e e e e e aeeas
SalES ANA USE tAXES . euuiuiiiiiiiieet e e e et e e e e e et
COrPOrAtION TAXES ....eeie e iiteeet ettt e e ettt e e et et et e e e e e e eaes
QTSI UT =T Uo7 = 0 = =
(@] (g1 g o= D SRR

Total general revenues and transfers ...........ccceiieiiiieciincinn i,

Change in net assets ...

Net assets, July 1, 2006 .........cccirmmrmmmuimmeiiie e e s ennarees

Net assets, June 30, 2007 ........cccevuimmiimermmrme s s na s sasssasssnssnns
* Restated

28 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ (7,736,508) $ (7,736,508)
(52,499,963) (52,499,963)
(31,690,737) (31,690,737)
(2,704,783) (2,704,783)
(479,183) (479,183)
(2,823,011) (2,823,011)
(8,719,541) (8,719,541)
(943,078) (943,078)
(2,596,316) (2,596,316)
(110,193,120) (110,193,120)
$ — —
62,118 62,118
(8,916) (8,916)
(118,249) (118,249)
262 262
(289,947) (289,947)
248,851 248,851
3,087 3,087
(7,841) (7,841)
(110,635) (110,635)
(110,193,120) (110,635) (110,303,755)
$ (1,165,154)
(313,626)
94,476
(254,083)
(241,174)
(1,879,561)
53,272,229 — 53,272,229 —
35,427,013 — 35,427,013 —
11,211,267 — 11,211,267 —
2,165,567 — 2,165,567 —
5,939,890 — 5,939,890 —
730,066 — 730,066 3,310,604
334,002 — 334,002 —
— — — 2,289,508
29,855 (29,855) — —
109,109,889 (29,855) 109,080,034 5,600,112
(1,083,231) (140,490) (1,223,721) 3,720,551
36,460,099 * 11,354,182 * 47,814,281 31,034,889 *
$ 35,376,868 $ 11,213,692 $ 46,590,560 $ 34,755,440

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

Transportation Nonmajor
General Federal Construction  Governmental Total
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments .................. $ 5963406 $ 464,518 $ 2,858,025 $ 13,748,126 23,034,075
Investments ............ — — — 2,186,949 2,186,949
Receivables (net) 8,442,061 1,854 401,440 1,264,137 10,109,492
Due from other funds ...........cccocevviiiinennn. 1,169,840 719 1,480,042 2,024,215 4,674,816
Due from other governments .................... 695,527 9,287,856 2,985 116,882 10,103,250
Interfund receivables ...........cccccceviiiieennnn. 83,785 — 1,699,747 726,549 2,510,081
Loans receivable ..........cooviiiiiiiiiiiineen, 99,768 43,465 — 2,347,674 2,490,907
Other assets ........cccceevunnnn. 36,327 — 76,144 169,394 281,865
Total assets $ 16,490,714 $ 9,798412 $ 6,518,383 $ 22,583,926 55,391,435
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable .............ccoevieiiiiiiiiinnnn. $ 1,093,020 $ 1,323,497 $ 106,518 $ 3,140,801 5,663,836
Due to other funds ..........ccooeeeniiiiiiiiinee. 4,877,236 6,344,969 12,458 1,321,798 12,556,461
Due to component units ...........cccceeeennnnen. 185,327 — — 60,484 245,811
Due to other governments ........................ 4,131,316 2,006,709 305,952 2,447,756 8,891,733
Interfund payables ..........cccocoeiiiiiiiiiiine. 3,350,931 — — 13,849 3,364,780
Tax overpayments .........cocceveeeerivnnennnennns 4,126,462 — — 9,420 4,135,882
DEePOSItS «.uoevieeeeiiei 7,615 — 10,632 302,493 320,740
Contracts and notes payable .................... — — — 65,706 65,706
Advance collections ..........ccccoceviviiiinnnns 40,058 57,980 5,867 300,677 404,582
Interest payable ...........ccocviiiiiiiiiieenn 16,782 9,130 — 200,400 226,312
General obligation bonds payable................ — — — 189,705 189,705
Other liabilities ........c..coouiviiiiiiiiinns 569,505 18,403 197,347 536,321 1,321,576
Total liabilities ...........cccceeeuiiienineanns 18,398,252 9,760,688 638,774 8,589,410 37,387,124
FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Encumbrances ..........ccooiiiiiiin 746,729 —_ 2,468,256 3,246,260 6,461,245
Interfund receivables ..............cco.oeeaenin 83,785 —_ 1,699,747 726,549 2,510,081
Loans receivable .............ccooiiiiiiiiiinn. 99,768 43,465 — 2,347,674 2,490,907
Continuing appropriations ...................... 1,666,255 — 4,903,990 5,366,369 11,936,614
Debt Service.......ocovviieeiiiieeee e, — — — 1,152,990 1,152,990
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund ..o (4,504,075) — — — (4,504,075)
Special revenue funds ...............cco.eeeee. — (5,741) (3,192,384) 2,283,282 (914,843)
Capital projects funds ............ccoceiveneenns — — — (1,128,608) (1,128,608)
Total fund balances ............ccceuiieennnne (1,907,538) 37,724 5,879,609 13,994,516 18,004,311
Total liabilities and fund
balances .......ccccoviiiiciiiniinr e, $ 16,490,714 $ 9,798,412 $ 6,518,383 $ 22,583,926
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Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Assets

(amounts in thousands)

Total fund balances — governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different from the governmental
funds Balance Sheet because:

« Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in
the funds.

¢ Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are not reported.

« Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as architectural,
procurement, and technology services, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service
funds are included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

* Bond discounts and premiums are reported as current expenditures in the funds. Deferred issue costs are
amortized over the life of the bonds and are included in the governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Assets.

¢ General obligation bonds totaling $50,624,162 and revenue bonds totaling $8,009,784 are not due and payable
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

« Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period; therefore, adjustments to these liabili-
ties are not reported in the funds:

Compensated absences adjustments (1,940,167)
Certificates of participation and commercial paper adjustments (1,358,051)
Capital lease adjustments (4,335,561)
Other long-term obligations (9,987,791)

Net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$

18,004,311

91,633,168

1,526,553

393,737

74,615

(58,633,946)

(17,621,570)

35,376,868
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2007

. Transportation Nonmajor
(amounts in thousands) P )

General Federal Construction Governmental Total
REVENUES
Personal income taxes $ 52,350,764 $ — % — 3 938,760 $ 53,289,524
Sales and use taxes .........coeeveenieiniiiniannenn. 27,402,715 — 950,814 7,097,782 35,451,311
Corporation taxes .........ocevvviiiiiiiiniineiieaanns 11,210,267 — — —_ 11,210,267
Insurance taxes 2,165,567 — — — 2,165,567
Othertaxes .......coeeevieiiiiiiieiiieiee e 537,736 — 3,224,021 2,038,270 5,800,027
Intergovernmental .............cocoeviiiiiiiinnen. — 44,590,863 — 1,851,656 46,442,519
Licenses and permits 17,331 — 1,006,343 4,242 468 5,266,142
168,934 — 737 741,716 911,387
586,448 — — 4,746,042 5,332,490
50,169 1,221 — 710,068 761,458
561,766 — 146,166 847,270 1,555,202
334,002 — — — 334,002
923,798 — 83,990 2,724,803 3,732,591
Total revenues ........coceeivviiieniirenninnen, 96,309,497 44,592,084 5,412,071 25,938,835 172,252,487
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government ..........ccocoeiieinieeennnn. 2,608,056 1,080,787 1,139,806 8,276,267 13,104,916
Education ..........cooiiiiiiiiiii e 49,343,928 6,726,053 980 5,032,047 61,103,008
Health and human services ..................... 28,945,062 32,376,784 — 8,835,960 70,157,806
RESOUICES ..oviviiiiiie e 1,455,477 374,313 12 3,361,276 5,191,078
State and consumer services ................... 538,343 31,033 — 645,376 1,214,752
Business and transportation ..................... 13,624 2,824,607 6,112,879 2,533,959 11,485,069
Correctional programs ............ccoceeueeeunnnen. 8,811,099 199,503 — 19,697 9,030,299
Taxrelief ..o 958,004 — — — 958,004
Capital outlay .........oeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeceens 178,936 — — 1,166,085 1,345,021
Debt service:
Bond and commercial paper retirement ..... 1,416,946 49,190 310 4,225,345 5,691,791
Interest and fiscal charges ....................... 1,917,108 22,959 7,110 934,672 2,881,849
Total expenditures .........cccevuuiiieeninnanns 96,186,583 43,685,229 7,261,097 35,030,684 182,163,593
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures .................. 122,914 906,855 (1,849,026) (9,091,849) (9,911,106)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
General obligation bonds and commercial
PAPEr ISSUEA ....ceuuiiiiiieieeiiee e — — 310 9,040,190 9,040,500
Refunding bonds issued ...........cccoooeiiiinennne. — — 302,900 8,795,476 9,098,376
Payment to refunding agent ...........cccceveenen. — — (302,900) (7,537,721) (7,840,621)
Capital 18aSES ......eorvveeiieiiiiiiieeee e 178,936 — — — 178,936
Transfers in .....oooooveiiii e, 1,590,173 — 3,385,830 4,335,459 9,311,462
Transfers out .......cocoviiiiiiiiiii e, (6,472,376) (903,571) (28,687) (1,838,137) (9,242,771)
Total other financing sources (uses) ... (4,703,267) (903,571) 3,357,453 12,795,267 10,545,882
Net change in fund balances ......................... (4,580,353) 3,284 1,508,427 3,703,418 634,776
Fund balances, July 1, 2006 2,672,815 34,440 4,371,182 * 10,291,098 * 17,369,535
Fund balances (deficits), June 30, 2007 ....... $ (1,907,538) $ 37,724 $ 5,879,609 $ 13,994,516 $ 18,004,311

* Restated

34 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

(amounts in thousands)

Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds $ 634,776

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different from the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of governmental funds because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of 2,752,640
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceed depreciation in the current period.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are deferred and not 299,451
reported as revenues in the funds.

Bonds and other noncurrent financing instruments provide current financial resources to governmental funds in
the form of debt, which increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of bond
principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the
Statement of Net Assets. The following amounts represent the difference between proceeds and repayments.

General obligation bond adjustments (3,278,017)
Revenue bond adjustments (900,237)
Certificates of participation and commercial paper adjustments (434,161)
(4,612,415)
* Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Compensated absences (226,062)
Lease adjustments 119.146
Other long-term obligations 219514
112,598
* Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as architectural, (270,281)
procurement, and technology services, to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service
funds is reported with governmental activities.
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (1,083,231)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 35
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Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

Water
Electric Power Resources
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and pooled investments .................. $ — 391,517
Amount on deposit with U.S. Treasury — —
INVESTMENTS ...ttt et et e et et e et et et e e et e et e s — —
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled INVESIMENTS ... ... e e e eea e 1,716,000 —
INVESTMENTS. ...ttt et e e e aab e e s st e e e sate e e e easee e e nneeeenseeeeeneeeeannes — —
Due from other governments ......................... — —
Net investment in direct financing leases — —
ReCeIVabIES (NEL) ...ceei et — 151,009
Due from other funds ..................... 41,000 8,230
Due from other governments — 15,381
Prepaid ifEmMS ... e — —
Inventories ........c.cooeveeiiiiiiinn. — 12,606
Recoverable power costs (net) 610,000 —
Other CUITENT @SSELS ...oeniitiiiii i e e et e e et e e et e e 91,000 —
Total CUMTENT @SSEIS ... e 2,458,000 578,743
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled INVESTMENES ..........iiitiiiii et 942,000 120,703
INVESIMIBNES .ot eaaaas 600,000 99,958
LO@NS FECERIVADIE ... e e e e — —
INVESTMENTS ... ettt et et e e — —
Net investment in direct fin@nciNg 1ASES .........ceuuiiiiiiii e — —
RECEIVADIES ... e et e e e — —
INtErfUNA rECEIVADIES ... ...eeiieiit e e e e eeanas — 91,517
LOANS FECEIVADIE .....viiniiiii e e ettt e et e e e e et e anaas — 25,928
Recoverable POWET COSES (NEL) .. .ceuuniiit ittt e et e e e e e e aans 6,503,000 —
Deferred Charges ........oeue i ettt e e — 1,239,653
Capital assets:
= Lo Lo L PP TP PPN — —
Collections — NONAEPIECIADIE. ..........coiuiiiiieiii ettt es — —
Buildings and other depreciable property ............ooeiiiiii i — 4,584,669
Less: accumulated depreCiation ............c..ooeuueiiiiiii i e — (1,800,158)
CONSIIUCHON IN PrOGIESS .. evvieit ettt et e e et et e e e e eaaaaen e — 253,152
Other NONCUITENT @SSEES .. .c.uiiiii it e et — —
Total NONCUITENE @SSEES ..ot i e e e e e eans 8,045,000 4,615,422
e €= L= T = PR $ 10,503,000 5,194,165

36 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Public Building State Unemployment Nonmajor Internal

Construction Lottery Programs Enterprise Total Service Funds
$ — 350,836 $ 2,490,806 2,059,262 5,292,421 $ 784,709
— — 3,455,035 — 3,455,035 —

— 314,702 — 255,823 570,525 —

109,524 — — 71,490 1,897,014 —

636 — — — 636 —

— — — 55,965 55,965 —

324,416 — — 14,609 339,025 —
133,157 225,278 152,488 31,079 693,011 117,209
28,814 6,298 36,853 31,009 152,204 328,806

— — 30,720 116,429 162,530 16,843

— 8,630 — 578 9,208 69,209

— 6,314 — 3,682 22,602 28,309

— — — — 610,000 —

— — — 545 91,545 50,751

596,547 912,058 6,165,902 2,640,471 13,351,721 1,395,836
38,353 — — 15,370 1,116,426 —
22,915 — — 11,239 734,112 —

— — — 512,173 512,173 —

— 1,472,958 — 60,987 1,533,945 —

6,029,202 — — 101,613 6,130,815 —

— — 26,854 — 26,854 —

— — — 2,188 93,705 —

— — — 3,314,890 3,340,818 —

— — — — 6,503,000 —

65,712 13,027 — 35,750 1,354,142 —

— 4,923 — 41,843 46,766 231

— — — 29 29 —

— 98,398 14,458 3,964,121 8,661,646 569,030
— (53,118) (4,982) (1,759,396) (3,617,654) (387,803)

676,642 — — 246,856 1,176,650 3,536

— — — 6,903 6,903 —

6,832,824 1,536,188 36,330 6,554,566 27,620,330 184,994

$ 7,429,371 2,448,246 $ 6,202,232 9,195,037 40,972,051 § 1,580,830

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(continued)
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Statement of Net Assets (continued)
Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE ... e
Due to other funds ..........
Due to component units
Due 10 0ther QOVEINMENES ..........iiiii e e
Deferred revenue
DIBPOSIES ... et ettt et et e e
Contracts and NOtes PAYaDIE ............coooiuiiiiii e
Advance collections

Interest Payable ...

Benefits payable ...
Current portion of long-term obligations
Other current abIlItIeS ..........oooeiiii e

Total current IAbIlIIES .......cee e e
Noncurrent liabilities:

INterfund PaYabIES ..........oii e

Benefits payable ...... ..o

Lottery prizes and annuUIties .............oooiiiiiiiiiii

Compensated absences PAYabIe .............oiiiuiiiiiiiii e e
Certificates of participation, commercial paper,

and Other DOMTOWINGS .. ....uuiii ittt e e
Capital 1ease oblIgationS ...........ciuuiiiiiii e
General obligation bonds payable ............couuuiiiiiiiiii e
Revenue bonds payable ..o

Other noncurrent labilities ...........ooiiiiiii i e
Total noncurrent Iabilities .......c..ovniiiii e

Total liabilities ....ccuoiiieieieiieir i s s e e s s s rra s s rn s rn e

NET ASSETS

Investment in capital assets, net of related debt ...

Restricted — Expendable:

(0707 415) (o3 1 (o] o RSSO
(=T o) 7= T 0V, (o] PP UPPRN
Security fOr reVENUE DONAS .......c.oiiiiiiieii ettt e e seeas

Lottery ..o
Unemployment program
ONEI PUIMPOSES ...ttt ettt ettt a et a bt et e bt eae e bt naeeneesneenenns
Total expendable

[0 =T 14103 (=T PP

Lo = L 1= =TT PN

Total liabilities and net assets .........cvveviiiiiriciirr s e

38

Water

Electric Power Resources
453,000 107,968
— 195
— 99,462
55,000 19,278
487,000 145,556
995,000 372,459
— 133,362
— 584,395
9,508,000 2,492,548
— 405,970
9,508,000 3,616,275
10,503,000 3,988,734
— 98,490
— 1,106,941
— 1,106,941
— 1,205,431
10,503,000 5,194,165

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Public Building State Unemployment Nonmajor Internal
Construction Lottery Programs Enterprise Total Service Funds
$ 18,005 38,347 $ 5 § 58,815 676,140 $ 200,268
116,758 292,466 51,068 34,607 495,094 523,483
— — — 5,563 5,563 6,921
897 — 14,618 1,297 116,274 13
— — — 58,360 58,360 —
— — — 3,868 3,868 6,342
— — — — — 5,789
19,037 2,570 — 4,105 25,712 244,484
64,251 —_ — 48,120 186,649 —
— —_ 406,740 — 406,740 —
348,674 630,374 — 230,961 1,842,565 15,052
— —_ 85,441 4,937 90,378 3,115
567,622 963,757 557,872 450,633 3,907,343 1,005,467
— — — 2,188 2,188 95,737
— — — 8,881 8,881 —
— 1,382,603 — — 1,382,603 —
— 5,162 14,855 7,561 27,578 46,912
— — — 46,420 179,782 —
— — — — — 9,115
— — — 1,233,395 1,817,790 —
6,567,593 — — 3,323,231 21,891,372 —
— 1,409 — 133,443 540,822 29,862
6,567,593 1,389,174 14,855 4,755,119 25,851,016 181,626
7,135,215 2,352,931 572,727 5,205,752 29,758,359 1,187,093
— 50,203 9,477 50,098 208,268 162,222
262,461 — — 290,071 1,659,473 —
31,695 — — 54,393 86,088 —
— — — 568,138 568,138 —
— 95,315 — — 95,315 —
— — 5,620,028 — 5,620,028 —
— — — 545,890 545,890 —
294,156 95,315 5,620,028 1,458,492 8,574,932 —
— (50,203) — 2,480,695 2,430,492 231,515
294,156 95,315 5,629,505 3,989,285 11,213,692 393,737
$ 7,429,371 2,448,246 $ 6,202,232 $ 9,195,037 40,972,051 $ 1,580,830

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(concluded)
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

Water
Electric Power Resources
OPERATING REVENUES
Unemployment and disability iNSUraNCe .............c..oiiiiiiiiinii e $ — 8 —
Lottery tiCKEt SAIES ........e i — —
POWET SAIES ...ttt ettt et e et et e e 4,843,000 222,206
Student tUItION @Nd FEES .. ... e — —
SEIVICES ANA SAIES ..ottt e — 729,384
INVESTMENT AN INTEIEST . ..nieie e e ettt e e e e e eaeneees — —
1= o — —
1043 T PP — —
Total operating rEVENUES ........ccuiieiieiiiiinine s s srr s s rre srn s raa s sas s ans s s e annas 4,843,000 951,590
OPERATING EXPENSES
LOMEIY PIIZES ..ot ettt — —
Power purchases (net of recoverable power COStS) ..........coiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 4,813,000 374,568
PEISONAI SEIVICES ...uuiiiitiiii ettt et et e e et et e e e — 203,021
SUPPIES ettt e et e e et e e — —
Services and charges 30,000 116,471
(D= o] (=To1 = o] o H AU OO PP PPN — 78,065
Distributions t0 DENEfICIANES ......ccunieeiii e — —
INEIEST EXPENSE ...t et — —
Amortization of deferred charges — —
Other ..o — —
Total operating expenses 4,843,000 772,125
Operating iNCOME (IOSS) ...cuuiiii ittt et e e e e e e eet e e e a e e e e e aan e eeens — 179,465
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment and iNtereSt INCOME .......oouiuii i e e e 1,022,000 —
Interest expense and fiscal Charges .............oiieiiiiiiiiiii e (1,022,000) (151,746)
Lottery payments for @dUCAtION .............iiiiiiiiiiiii e — —
[ (o =T PP PP PPPPPP — (27,719)
Total nonoperating revenues (EXPENSES) ......cueuiiruuirrurrrensrrrsrrsrrassrre s sannrrnnss — (179,465)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers .............c.oiiiiiiiiii — —
Capital CONTADULIONS ......ciii et eeen s — —
I 15 (=Y £ o PRSP — —
R 1) (= £ 0| PP — —
Change iN NEE ASSEES .. .eui it et e — —
Total net assets, JUly 1, 2006 .........ccuuimiiuiimiiiirrir e s s s s s rn s srn s snnsnnnss — 1,205,431
Total net assets, JUNE 30, 2007 ......ccuveuerureuireirrerrrarresrressnsssnssesssasssssssssrassensressenssenssnsssnsens $ —  $ 1,205,431
* Restated

40 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Public Building State Unemployment Nonmajor Internal
Construction Lottery Programs Enterprise Total Service Funds

$ — — 8,607,112 § — 8 8,607,112 § —
— 3,318,346 — — 3,318,346 —

— — — — 5,065,206 —

— — — 499,667 499,667 —

— — 126,741 91,451 947,576 2,205,471

33,075 — — 184,492 217,567 289

363,818 — — 43,031 406,849 —

2 — — 14,205 14,207 —

396,895 3,318,346 8,733,853 832,846 19,076,530 2,205,760

— 1,765,643 — — 1,765,643 —

— — — — 5,187,568 —

— 42,225 138,191 153,299 536,736 640,715

— 12,524 — — 12,524 11,766

3,699 336,423 65,194 622,653 1,174,440 1,461,437

— 9,100 716 87,837 175,718 39,926

— — 8,932,117 — 8,932,117 —

324,246 — — 231,567 555,813 734

6,832 — — 874 7,706 —

— — — 36,942 36,942 —

334,777 2,165,915 9,136,218 1,133,172 18,385,207 2,154,578
62,118 1,152,431 (402,365) (300,326) 691,323 51,182

— 142,153 284,116 87,681 1,535,950 2,931
— (127,771) — (9,208) (1,310,725) (357)

— (1,176,929) — — (1,176,929) —
— 1,200 — (6,724) (33,243) (285,201)
— (1,161,347) 284,116 71,749 (984,947) (282,627)
62,118 (8,916) (118,249) (228,577) (293,624) (231,445)

— — — 182,989 182,989 —

66,601 — — 1,571 68,172 —
— — — (98,027) (98,027) (38,836)
128,719 (8,916) (118,249) (142,044) (140,490) (270,281)

165,437 104,231 5,747,754 4,131,329 * 11,354,182 664,018 *
$ 294,156 95,315 $ 5,629,505 $ 3,989,285 $ 11,213,692 $ 393,737

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers/employers
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers ............c.ccceeeiinnns
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund SErviCes USEd .............cuuuiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Payments for LOTEry Prizes .......cc.iiiuiiii e e
Claims paid to other than emplOYEES ...........oiiuiiiiiii e
Other receipts (PAYMENTS) ......iiii it et e e e e e e e e

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities .........ccccoeiiiieiiiiiiincic
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Changes in interfund payables and loans payable .............ccoiiiiiiiiii e
Proceeds from DONAS ..........iiiiiiiii e
Receipts 0f DONd Charges ........ocuueiiiii e
Retirement of general obligation bonds ...
Retirement of revenue DoNdS ...
Interest paid on operating debt ......... oo e
LI LA 51 (=T £ o PR

1) (= o 10| PP UPPTPPN
GIrANES FECEIVEM ... i eei ettt e ettt e e et e et e ettt e e et e et e eaa e aeneaeeas
Lottery payments for @UCALION ..............iiiniiiiii e et
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities ...........cccccceiiniiiininnnnns
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Changes in interfund payables and loans payable ...........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiin e,
Acquisition of infangible assets .............cooiii i
Acquisition of capital assets ..............cccceiiiinns
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from notes payable and commercial Paper ...........cc.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e
Principal paid on notes payable and commercial Paper ...............cccouiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Retirement of general obligation bonds ...
Proceeds from revenue bONAS ..........coouiiiiiiiiiii e
Retirement of revenue bONAS ...... ...
INErESt PAIT ...t e

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities ...............cccuun..e,
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of INVESIMENTS ... oo e
Proceeds from maturity and sale of investments ..............
Change in interfund receivables and loans receivable
Earnings (I0SS) 0N INVESIMENTS ......coiuiiiiiii e e

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ...
Net increase (decrease) in cash and pooled investments .............c.oviiiiiiiiiiiii i

Cash and pooled investments at July 1, 2006 ............ccooirmmmniiniimmeiinrr e e,
Cash and pooled investments at June 30, 2007 .........cccireermnrmniriiriirirrrr e s sasssas

Water
Electric Power Resources
4,836,000 $ 946,659
(4,719,000) (494,782)
— (203,021)
42,000 (68,037)
159,000 180,819
865,000 —
(447,000) —
(448,000) —
(30,000) —
— (95,124)
— 4,621
— (48,965)
— 250,000
— (70,860)
— (152,571)
— (112,899)
— 475
159,000 (22,335)
159,000 (21,860)
288,000 46,060
2,370,000 466,160
2,658,000 $ 512,220

42 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Public Building State Unemployment Nonmajor Internal
Construction Lottery Programs Enterprise Total Service Funds
$ 671,331 $ 3,335,785 $ 8,796,746 $ 682,564 $ 19,269,085 $ 2,255,046
— — — 7,702 7,702 90,015
(3,573) (131,240) (65,200) (628,438) (6,042,233) (1,411,186)
— (37,758) (131,072) (157,652) (529,503) (647,139)
— (9,418) — (18,562) (27,980) (81,591)
— (2,119,823) — — (2,119,823) —
— (233,771) (8,869,062) (14) (9,102,847) (12,819)
(277,522) 58,565 28,418 (179,934) (396,510) 87,195
390,236 862,340 (240,170) (294,334) 1,057,891 279,521
— — — 4,938 4,938 1,640
— — — 735,235 735,235 —
— — — — 865,000 —
— — — (319,280) (319,280) —
— — — (315,311) (762,311) —
— — — (10,655) (458,655) (61)
10,671 — — 1,571 12,242 —
— — — (55,409) (55,409) (38,836)
— — — 184,160 184,160 —
— (1,236,996) — — (1,236,996) —
10,671 (1,236,996) — 225,249 (1,031,076) (37,257)
(17,711) — — 8,301 (9,410) —
— — — (527) (527) (2,831)
(604,201) (2,340) (728) (495,769) (1,198,162) (57,333)
— 7 — 313,569 313,576 514
— — — 67,367 71,988 —
— — — (85,277) (85,277) (1,227)
— — — — (48,965) —
384,796 — — 359,639 994,435 —
(365,953) — — (60,575) (497,388) —
— — — (99,598) (252,169) (1,030)
(603,069) (2,333) (728) 7,130 (711,899) (61,907)
(19,596) (287,421) (609,623) (255,824) (1,172,464) —
— 625,942 — 109,100 735,042 —
— — — — 475 —
— 22,642 284,116 85,749 529,172 2,782
(19,596) 361,163 (325,507) (60,975) 92,225 2,782
(221,758) (15,826) (566,405) (122,930) (592,859) 183,139
369,635 366,662 3,057,211 2,269,052 8,898,720 601,570
$ 147,877 $ 350,836 $ 2,490,806 $ 2,146,122 8,305,861 $ 784,709

(continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 43
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Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

Proprietary Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2007

(amounts in thousands) Water
Electric Power Resources
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
OpPerating iNCOME (JOSS) ... .uutueeeiit ettt ettt et e et e ettt e e ettt e e e e e e eeenas $ — 3 179,465
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided
by (used in) operating activities:
Interest expense on operating debt ... — —
1= o] =T =i o] o PPN — 78,065
Accretion of capital appreciation BONAS .............oouiiiiiiii — —
Provisions and alloWanCeS ............c.oiiiiiiiiiiiii s — —
Accrual of deferred Charges .........o.u i e e — —
AmOrtization Of AISCOUNTS ........cuuiiiiii e e e e — —
Amortization of deferred Charges ..........ooiiuiiiii i — (10,955)
113 T= PP PUPRPPN — (68,037)
Change in assets and liabilities:
RECEIVADIES ... . e e — (41,057)
Due from Other FUNAS ..........iiii e — —
Due from other gOVEIMMENTS ........iiiiiii i — (7,786)
Prepaid iEMS ... e e — —
10 V=T 1 (o] = PP — 845
Net investment in direct financing 1ASES ..........couuiiiiiiiii e — —
Recoverable POWET COSES (NEL) .. .c.uuiiieiii ittt e e e e e 223,000 —
OFher CUIMTENT @SSEIS .....evvriiiiiiie it e e e e e e e e e e enen e — —
LoanS receivable ............ooouiiiiiiii s — —
INterfund reCeIVaDIE ...........eiiiie e — —
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ..ot e (59,000) 38,039
DUE 10 OThEr fUNAS ... .o e e — (7,164)
Due 10 COMPONENT UNIES ..ot e e e e e e e e e — —
Due 10 0ther gQOVEIMMENTES ........i e e e — 17,927
[ =T oL 11 £ TSP — —
Contracts and NOtES PAYADIE ...........oiiuiiii e — —
Advance COIIECHIONS ..........coouiiiiiiii — —
INterest PAYADIE ........ooiie e — —
Other current liabilities .............ooiiiii e — —
Deferred FEVENUE .........oiiieiieie et — —
BENEfitS PAYADIE ... et e — —
Lottery prizes and annUItIES ...........ieiieiiie i e e — —
Compensated absences Payable ... — 1,477
Capital 1ease ObIGAtIONS .......cc.iiii e e — —
Other noncurrent lIAbIlIIES .........cuiiie e (5,000) —
Total adJUSTMENES ... e e e 159,000 1,354
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ........ccc.ccorrmmiiiiiiniin e, $ 159,000 $ 180,819
Noncash capital and related financing and investing activities
Interest accreted on annuitized prizes $ — % —
Unclaimed Lottery prizes directly transferred to Education Fund — —
Unrealized 10SS 0N INVESIMENT ... .ot — —

Acquisition of equipment accrued in accounts payable
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Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Public Building State Unemployment Nonmajor Internal

Construction Lottery Programs Enterprise Total Service Funds
$ 62,118 1,152,431 § (402,365) $ (300,326) $ 691,323 $ 51,182
— — — 99,598 99,598 734

— 9,100 716 87,837 175,718 39,926

1,958 — — 2,020 3,978 —

242 (1,795) — (1,421) (2,974) —

(11,796) — — — (11,796) —

— — — 369 369 —

37,854 7,408 — 7,388 41,695 —

— 1,219 — (11,277) (78,095) —

(622) 5,362 7,975 13,805 (14,537) 29,976
16,650 3 74 2,974 19,701 (55,857)
— — 39,002 (2,572) 28,644 (2,368)
— (2,887) — (521) (3,408) (19,166)
— 2,689 — 283 3,817 (7,065)

290,925 — — 14,228 305,153 —

— — — — 223,000 —
— (1,357) — 1,044 (313) (173)

— — — (219,310) (219,310) —

— — — (4,032) (4,032) —

(804) (11,499) (11) 37,288 4,013 61,548

468 45 28,031 (16,766) 4,614 166,937

— — — — — 113
(48) — 3,845 — 21,724 (158)

— — — 567 567 5,582

— — — — — 2,321

(47) (364) — 93 (318) 6,499

(6,662) — — 3,287 (3,375) —
— — 16,236 1,994 18,230 (38)

— — — 3,171 3,171 —

— (291) 59,210 (3,954) 54,965 —

— (297,724) — — (297,724) —
— — 7,119 (4,353) 4,243 (1,533)

— — — — — 603

— — @) (5,748) (10,750) 458

328,118 (290,091) 162,195 5,992 366,568 228,339

$ 390,236 $ 862,340 $ (240,170) $ (294,334) $ 1,057,891 $ 279,521
(concluded)

$ — 118,856 $ — 3 —  $ 118,856 $ —
— 29,218 — — 29,218 —

— (8,916) — — (8,916) —

— 14,064 — — — —

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds and Similar Component Units

June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

Pension
and Other Investment
Private Employee Trust
Purpose Benefit Local Agency
Trust Trust Investment Agency
ASSETS
Cash and pooled investments .............ccccevvveieeiinneeeennne. $ 41,724 $ 1,343,353 $ 19,990,748 2,907,569
Investments, at fair value:
ShOM-terM ..o — 4,867,991 — —
Equity securities ... — 256,590,799 — —
Debt SECUNEIES ..oooneiiiiiiie s — 96,949,065 — —
Real estate .......cooooiiiiiii e — 38,113,015 — —
Other ........ 2,729,123 36,749,553 — —
Securities lending collateral ...........ccoceeoiieeiinenicnenes — 78,404,152 — —
Total INVeStMENTS ......cceiiiiiiiiee e 2,729,123 511,674,575 — —
Receivables (net) ....... 5,272 9,362,751 — 1,315,298
Due from other funds 49,097 412,656 — 7,972,528
Due from other governments ..............ccoeeeiiiiiiiiiiinn. — 12 — 61,943
Prepaid Items .............ccceiiieiennnn. — — — 30,910
Interfund receivables 925,855 — — —
Loans receivable ..o — — — 78,468
Other assets ........... 107,725 399,195 — 388
Total assets 3,858,796 523,192,542 19,990,748 12,367,104
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ... 2,231 5,769,412 48 4,720,253
Duetootherfunds .........cccoiiiiiiiii e, 78 14,471 520 —
Due to other governments ..............ccooeeiiiiiiiiiiiinee, — 59,830 253,922 5,914,184
Tax overpayments ........ccoccvriiiiiiiiiiiieeie e — — — 2,354
Benefits payable ...........ccoooiiiii — 266,187 — 224,916
DEPOSIES ..neeiie e 107,725 — — 832,637
Advance collections ...........ccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiii e — — — 65,291
Securities lending obligations .............cccoooiiiiit. — 78,404,152 — —
Interfund payables..............cooiiiiiii — — — 66,936
Other liabilities ............uuviiiiiiiii e 1,013,966 6,331,978 — 540,533
Total liabilities ........ccccciiiirmeeiiiir s 1,124,000 90,846,030 254,490 12,367,104
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits, pool participants,
and other PUIPOSES ......cceuueerrrrencerrrrererrrrrnerremnnnens $ 2,734,796 $ 432,346,512 $ 19,736,258
46 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds and Similar Component Units

Year Ended June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

Pension
and Other Investment
Private Employee Trust
Purpose Benefit Local Agency
Trust Trust Investment
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
EMPIOYET ..o e $ — 10,066,858 —
Plan MEMDET ....oeiiii e — 6,266,946 —
Total contributions — 16,333,804 —
Investment income:
Net appreciation in fair value of investments ...............cco.oii — 35,862,523 —
Interest, dividends, and other investment income ... 63,531 42,084,553 870,419
Less: investment eXpense ..........cooouiiiiiiiiiiiii — (6,278,580) —
Net investment iNCOME ........coouiiiiiiii e 63,531 71,668,496 870,419
Receipts from depositors 741,619 — 27,239,487
OB e 223,456 24,777 —
Total additions .......covvireuiiiiiriir s 1,028,606 88,027,077 28,109,906
DEDUCTIONS
Distributions paid and payable to participants ..............ccoeeviiiiiniinnennn. — 17,472,982 868,661
Refunds of contribUtions ...........cooiiiiiiii — 288,800 —
AdMINISLrative EXPENSE .....cuuiiiiieee e 8,235 397,167 1,753
Payments to and for depositors ............cceuuiiiiiiiiiiiii e 386,279 385,681 23,895,119
Total deductions .........ciiiieeeiiiiiici 394,514 18,544,630 24,765,533
Change in net assets 634,092 69,482,447 3,344,373
Net assets, July 1, 2006 ..... 2,100,704 362,864,065 16,391,885
Net assets, June 30, 2007 $ 2,734,796 $ 432,346,512 19,736,258

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

47



State of California Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

This page intentionally left blank.

48



Discretely Presented
Component Units

Financial Statements
- ]




State of California Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Statement of Net Assets
Discretely Presented Component Units — Enterprise Activity

June 30, 2007

(amounts in thousands) California
University State Housing Public Nonmajor
of Compensation Finance Employees' Component
California Insurance Agency Benefits Units Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and pooled investments ......... $ 308,752 $ 65613 $ 793,300 $ 344,470 $ 642,917 $ 2,155,052
Investments ........c..covuiiiiiiiniinnannns 6,296,969 5,214,231 872,193 11,066 246,847 12,641,306
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled investments ........ — — — — 8,316 8,316
Investments .........ccoccevveeeeeeecccinnes — — — — 45,981 45,981
Receivables (net) ...........ccooeeivenn. 1,682,520 1,182,618 398,418 1,631 345,445 3,610,632
Due from primary government ......... 251,374 — — 5,786 1,135 258,295
Due from other governments .......... 538,461 — — 47,633 44,309 630,403
Prepaid items ..........cccoeviiiiiiiinnen. — — 718 — 2,750 3,468
Inventories ........ccceevvevviiiiiiiiinnennn, 143,254 — — — 313 143,567
Other current assets ...................... 138,808 — 100 — 58,435 197,343
Total current assets .................. 9,360,138 6,462,462 2,064,729 410,586 1,396,448 19,694,363
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and pooled investments ...... — — — — 128,334 128,334
Investments ...........ccoeiiiiiiinin, — — — — 63,184 63,184
Investments ...........cccceeeene. 17,664,282 16,207,430 52,187 2,556,570 1,051,652 37,532,121
Receivables (net) 724,128 — — — 243,944 968,072
Loans receivable .......................... — — 7,192,125 — 295,414 7,487,539
Deferred charges .......................... — 20,189 37,344 — 1,650 59,083
Capital assets:
Land ..o 615,015 53,526 — — 93,688 762,229
Collections — nondepreciable ........ 266,153 — — — 3,944 270,097
Buildings and other depreciable
Propenty ....ooeeveiiiiiieen 25,100,258 456,624 1,424 — 1,513,581 27,071,887
Less: accumulated depreciation ....  (11,712,172) (210,943) (558) — (615,011) (12,538,684)
Construction in progress .............. 3,836,078 73,373 — — 56,791 3,966,242
Other noncurrent assets ................. 267,613 — 4,509 — 82,629 354,751
Total noncurrent assets ............. 36,761,355 16,600,199 7,287,031 2,556,570 2,919,700 66,124,855
Total assets .......ccceuuiieeniirennn. $ 46,121,493 $ 23,062,661 $ 9,351,760 $ 2,967,156 $ 4,316,148 $ 85,819,218

50 The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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California
University State Housing Public Nonmajor
of Compensation Finance Employees' Component
California Insurance Agency Benefits Units Total
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ............ccceeuee.... $ 1,445,046 $ 98,545 $ 12,883 $ 298259 $ 113,288 § 1,968,021
Due to other governments .............. — — 5 — 33 38
Dividends payable .............ccc...eene — 3,100 — — — 3,100
Deferred revenue ...............cccoeenee. 755,709 — — — 56,316 812,025
DepPOSItS ..ocvvueniieeiiiiieeeeii e 357,504 — 167,240 — 1,494 526,238
Contracts and notes payable .......... — — — — 10,598 10,598
Advance collections ...................... — 139,851 — — 609 140,460
Interest payable ...........cccooceiiiinnnnn. — — 147,850 — 1,952 149,802
Securities lending obligations .......... 4,921,107 1,799,480 — e e 6,720,587
Benefits payable ...................ooeill — 2,236,720 — e e 2,236,720
Current portion of long-term
obligations ..........ccceuiieiiiiiinennenns 1,429,427 62,108 81,759 21,230 110,047 1,704,571
Other current liabilities ................... 1,078,692 121,166 1,055 109,951 181,169 1,492,033
Total current liabilities ............... 9,987,485 4,460,970 410,792 429,440 475,506 15,764,193
Noncurrent liabilities:
Benefits payable ........................... — 14,088,574 — 2,916,015 — 17,004,589
Compensated absences payable .... 202,606 — — — 10,277 212,883
Certificates of participation,
commercial paper, and
other borrowings ................. 76,592 — — — 52,333 128,925
Capital lease obligations 1,884,177 — — — 231,375 2,115,552
Revenue bonds payable ................ 6,223,248 — 7,499,692 — 448,990 14,171,930
Other noncurrent liabilities .............. 971,710 331,562 48,363 — 314,071 1,665,706
Total noncurrent liabilities .......... 9,358,333 14,420,136 7,548,055 2,916,015 1,057,046 35,299,585
Total liabilities ...........cccceeeuees 19,345,818 18,881,106 7,958,847 3,345,455 1,532,552 51,063,778
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of
related debt ...........cooiiiiiiinn. 9,101,981 372,580 866 — 497,581 9,973,008
Restricted:
Nonexpendable ...............cceeeen. 2,647,931 — — — 647,564 3,295,495
Expendable:
Endowments and gifts ................. 7,665,687 — — — 9,793 7,675,480
Education ........ccocceeveeiieeniiiieens 818,016 — — — 652,756 1,470,772
INAENUre ........eevveevieeiiaa, — — 731,330 — — 731,330
Employee benefits ..........cccecueeneee. — — — 463,958 — 463,958
Workers’ compensation liability ... — 3,808,975 — — — 3,808,975
Statute .ooceeeeeeieee e — — 660,717 — 250,449 911,166
Other purposes ........ccccceeveeeieeenns — — — — 258,675 258,675
Total expendable ............ccc.c...... 8,483,703 3,808,975 1,392,047 463,958 1,171,673 15,320,356
Unrestricted ........cocoeeieiiiiiiiiiennnns 6,542,060 — — (842,257) 466,778 6,166,581
Total net assets .........ccceeeeneee 26,775,675 4,181,555 1,392,913 (378,299) 2,783,596 34,755,440
Total liabilities and net assets $ 46,121,493 $ 23,062,661 $ 9,351,760 $ 2,967,156 $ 4,316,148 $ 85,819,218

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Statement of Activities
Discretely Presented Component Units — Enterprise Activity

Year Ended June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personal services ............c..ccceeeeenen.
Scholarships and fellowships
Supplies
Services and charges
Department of Energy laboratories ....
Depreciation

Distributions to beneficiaries

Interest expense and fiscal charges ..
Total operating expenses
PROGRAM REVENUES
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions ...
Capital grants and contributions

Total program revenues
Net (expense) revenue
GENERAL REVENUES
Investment and interest income

Total general revenues

Change in net assets
Net assets (deficit), July 1, 2006
Net assets (deficit), June 30, 2007 .
* Restated

52

State California
University Compensation Housing Public Nonmajor
of Insurance Finance Employees'’ Component
California Fund Agency Benefits Units Total

$ 10,313,242 $ 654,073 $ 21,836 $ — $ 508576 $ 11,497,727
401,153 — — — 43,921 445,074
1,909,814 — — — 7,060 1,916,874
371,661 69,881 61,996 1,903,139 1,229,963 3,636,640
2,169,750 — — — — 2,169,750
1,049,008 34,268 189 — 60,844 1,144,309
— 2,386,717 — — — 2,386,717

385,201 — 368,382 — 36,723 790,306

— 370,418 9,249 — 89 379,756

451,290 — 74,505 — — 525,795
2,521,130 275,934 — — 74,411 2,871,475
19,572,249 3,791,291 536,157 1,903,139 1,961,587 27,764,423
10,714,361 3,477,665 516,398 1,649,056 1,187,287 17,544,767
7,475,951 e 114,235 e 518,346 8,108,532
216,783 e — — 14,780 231,563
18,407,095 3,477,665 630,633 1,649,056 1,720,413 25,884,862
(1,165,154) (313,626) 94,476 (254,083) (241,174) (1,879,561)
1,986,685 835,349 — 310,596 177,974 3,310,604
1,879,252 116,323 30,230 362 263,341 2,289,508
3,865,937 951,672 30,230 310,958 441,315 5,600,112
2,700,783 638,046 124,706 56,875 200,141 3,720,551
24,074,892 3,543,509 1,268,207 (435,174) 2,583,455 * 31,034,889
... $ 26,775,675 $ 4,181,555 $ 1,392,913 $ (378,299) $ 2,783,596 $ 34,755,440

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements present information on the financial activities of the State of California
over which the Governor, the Legislature, and other elected officials have direct or indirect governing and fiscal
control. These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). During the year ended June 30, 2007, provisions of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, were implemented.

A. Reporting Entity

These financial statements present the primary government of the State and its component units. The primary
government consists of all funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that are not
legally separate from the State. Component units are organizations that are legally separate from the State
but for which the State is financially accountable or organizations whose relationship with the State is such that
exclusion would cause the State’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The decision to include
a component unit in the State’s reporting entity is based on several criteria, including legal standing, fiscal
dependency, and financial accountability. Following is information on the blended, fiduciary, and discretely
presented component units of the State.

1. Blended Component Units

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the primary
government’s operations. Therefore, data from these blended component units are integrated into the
appropriate funds for reporting purposes.

Building authorities are blended component units because they have been created through the use of joint
exercise-of-powers agreements with various cities to finance the construction of state buildings. The building
authorities are reported as capital projects funds. As a result, capital lease arrangements between the building
authorities and the State in the amount of $568 million have been eliminated from the financial statements.
Instead, only the underlying capital assets and the debt used to acquire them are reported in the
government-wide financial statements. For information on how to obtain copies of the financial statements of
the building authorities, contact the State Controller's Office, Division of Accounting and Reporting,
P.O. Box 942850, Sacramento, California 94250.

The Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corporation (GSTSC) is a not-for-profit corporation established
through legislation in September 2002 solely for the purpose of purchasing Tobacco Settlement Revenues
from the State. The five voting members of the State Public Works Board serve ex officio as the directors of
the corporation. GSTSC is authorized to issue bonds necessary to provide sufficient funds for carrying out its
purpose. GSTSC is reported in the combining statements in the Nonmajor Governmental Funds section as a
special revenue fund. For information on how to obtain copies of the financial statements of GSTSC, contact
the Department of Finance, Capital Outlay/Resources Section, 915 L Street, 9th Floor, Sacramento,
California 94814.
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The California State University, Channel Islands Site Authority (Site Authority) was formed in 1998 to convert
the property previously known as the Camarillo State Hospital from its former use to a California State
University campus and other compatible uses. The Site Authority is governed by a board of seven members
comprised of four representatives of the Trustees of the California State University and three representatives
from Ventura County. The California State University, Channel Islands Financing Authority (Financing
Authority) was formed in 2000 to provide financing through revenue bonds for the construction and other
improvements conducted by the Site Authority. The Site Authority and the Financing Authority are included in
the California State University Programs special revenue fund in the combining statements in the Nonmajor
Governmental Funds section. The loan and other transactions of $46 million between the two authorities have
been eliminated from the financial statements. Instead, only the underlying capital assets and the debt used to
acquire them are reported in the government-wide financial statements. For information on how to obtain
copies of the financial statements of the Site Authority and the Financing Authority, contact the California State
University, Channel Islands, One University Drive, Camarillo, California 93012.

2. Fiduciary Component Units

The State has two fiduciary component units that administer pension and other employee benefit trust funds.
These entities are legally separate from the State and meet the definition of a component unit because they
are fiscally dependent on the State; however, due to their fiduciary nature, they are presented in the Fiduciary
Fund Statements as pension and other employee benefit trust funds, along with other primary government
fiduciary funds.

The California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) administers pension and health benefit plans
for state employees, non-teaching school employees, and employees of California public agencies. Its Board
of Administration has plenary authority and fiduciary responsibility for the investment of monies and the
administration of the plans. CalPERS administers the following eight pension and other employee benefit trust
funds: the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund, the Judges’ Retirement Fund, the Judges’ Retirement Fund I,
the Legislators’ Retirement Fund, the Volunteer Firefighters’ Length of Service Award Fund, the State Peace
Officers’ and Firefighters’ Defined Contribution Plan Fund, the Replacement Benefits Fund, and the
Supplemental Contributions Program Fund. Copies of CalPERS’ separately issued financial statements may
be obtained in writing from the California Public Employees’ Retirement System, Fiscal Services Division,
P.O. Box 942703, Sacramento, California 94229.

The California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) administers pension benefit plans for California
public school teachers and certain other employees of the public school system. CalSTRS administers two
pension and other employee benefit trust funds: the State Teachers’ Retirement Fund, the Teachers’ Health
Benefits Fund and the Voluntary Investment Program. Copies of CalSTRS’ separately issued financial
statements may be obtained from the California State Teachers’ Retirement System, P.O. Box 15275,
Sacramento, California 95851.

3. Discretely Presented Component Units

Enterprise activity of discretely presented component units is reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements. Discretely presented component units are legally separate from the
primary government and mostly provide services to entities and individuals outside the primary government.
Discretely presented component units that report enterprise activity include the University of California, the
State Compensation Insurance Fund, the California Housing Finance Agency, the Public Employees’ Benefits
Fund, and nonmajor component units.

58



Notes to the Financial Statements

The University of California was founded in 1868 as a public, state-supported, land grant institution. It was
written into the State Constitution of 1879 as a public trust to be administered by a governing board, the
Regents of the University of California. The University of California is a component unit of the State because
the State appoints a voting majority of the regents and because expenditures for the support of various
university programs and capital outlay are appropriated by the annual Budget Act. The University of California
offers defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution pension plans to its employees through the
University of California Retirement System (UCRS). The UCRS is a discretely presented fiduciary unit of the
university; and as such, the financial information of the UCRS is not included in the financial statements of this
report. Copies of the University of California’s and the UCRS’ separately issued financial statements may be
obtained from the University of California, Financial Management, 1111 Franklin Street, Oakland,
California 94607.

The State Compensation Insurance Fund (SCIF) is a self-supporting enterprise created to offer insurance
protection to employers at the lowest possible cost. It operates in competition with other insurance carriers to
provide services to the State, counties, cities, school districts, and other public corporations. It is a component
unit of the State because the State appoints all five voting members of SCIF’s governing board and has the
authority to approve or modify SCIF’s budget. Copies of SCIF’s financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2006, may be obtained from the State Compensation Insurance Fund, 1275 Market Street,
San Francisco, California 94103.

The California Housing Finance Agency (CalHFA) was created by the Zenovich-Moscone-Chacon Housing
and Home Finance Act, as amended. CalHFA's purpose is to meet the housing needs of persons and families
of low and moderate income. It is a component unit of the State because the State appoints a voting majority
of CalHFA’s governing board and has the authority to approve or modify its budget. Copies of CalHFA’s
financial statements may be obtained from the California Housing Finance Agency, P.O. Box 4034,
Sacramento, California 95812.

The Public Employees’ Benefits Fund, which is administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System and accounts for contributions and premiums for public employee long-term care plans and for
administration of a deferred compensation program. Copies of CalPERS’ separately issued financial
statements may be obtained in writing from the California Public Employees’ Retirement System, Fiscal
Services Division, P.O. Box 942703, Sacramento, California 94229.

State legislation created various nonmajor component units to provide certain services outside the primary
government and to provide certain private and public entities with a low-cost source of financing for programs
deemed to be in the public interest. The California Pollution Control Financing Authority, the San Joaquin River
Conservancy, and the district agricultural associations are considered component units because they have a
fiscal dependency on the primary government. The California Educational Facilities Authority is considered a
component unit because its exclusion from the statements would be misleading because of its relationship to
the primary government. California State University auxiliary organizations are considered component units
because they exist entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the universities. The remaining nonmajor
component units are considered component units because the majority of members of their governing boards
are appointed by or are members of the primary government, because the primary government can impose its
will on the entity, or because the entity provides a specific financial benefit to the primary government. For
information on how to obtain copies of the financial statements of these component units, contact the State
Controller’s Office, Division of Accounting and Reporting, P.O. Box 942850, Sacramento, California 94250.
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The nonmajor component units are:

The California Alternative Energy and Advanced Transportation Financing Authority, which provides
financing for alternative energy and advanced transportation technologies;

The California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank, which provides financing for business
development and public improvements;

The California Pollution Control Financing Authority, which provides financing for pollution control facilities;

The California Health Facilities Financing Authority, which provides financing for the construction, equipping,
and acquisition of health facilities;

The California Educational Facilities Authority, which issues revenue bonds to finance loans for students
attending public and private colleges and universities and to assist private educational institutions of higher
learning in financing the expansion and construction of educational facilities (the EdFund financial report
included in this entity is as of and for the year ended September 30, 2006);

The California School Finance Authority, which provides loans to school and community college districts to
assist them in obtaining equipment and facilities;

California State University auxiliary organizations, which provide services primarily to university students
through foundations, associated student organizations, student unions, food service entities, book stores,
and similar organizations;

District agricultural associations, which exhibit all of the industries, industrial enterprises, resources, and
products of the state (the district agricultural association’s financial report is as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2006);

The University of California Hastings College of the Law, which was established as the law department of
the University of California to provide legal education programs and operates independently under its own
board of directors. The college has a discretely presented component unit, the Foundation, that provides
private sources of funds for academic programs, scholarships, and faculty research;

The San Joaquin River Conservancy, which was created to acquire and manage public lands within the San
Joaquin River Parkway;

The California Urban Waterfront Area Restoration Financing Authority, which provides financing for coastal
and inland urban waterfront restoration projects; and

The California Consumer Power and Conservation Financing Authority, which provides financing for projects
to increase power supplies, reduce demand for energy, and improve the efficiency and environmental
performance of power plants.

4. Joint Venture

A joint venture is an entity resulting from a contractual arrangement; it is owned, operated, or governed by two
or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control. In such an arrangement, the
participants retain an ongoing financial interest or an ongoing financial responsibility in the entity. These
entities are not part of the primary government or a component unit.
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The State participates in a joint venture called the Capitol Area Development Authority (CADA). CADA was
created in 1978 by the joint exercise of powers agreement between the primary government and the City of
Sacramento for the location of state buildings and other improvements. CADA is a public entity, separate from
the primary government and the city, and is administered by a board of five members: two appointed by the
primary government, two appointed by the city, and one appointed by the affirmative vote of at least three of
the other four members of the board. The primary government designates the chairperson of the board.
Although the primary government does not have an equity interest in CADA, it does have an ongoing financial
interest. Based upon the appointment authority, the primary government has the ability to indirectly influence
CADA to undertake special projects for the citizenry of the participants. The primary government subsidizes
CADA'’s operations by leasing land to CADA without consideration; however, the primary government is not
obligated to do so. At June 30, 2007, CADA had total assets of $27.9 million, total liabilities of $18.2 million,
and total net assets of $9.7 million. Total revenues for the fiscal year were $9.9 million and expenses were
$8.4 million, resulting in a change in net assets of $1.5 million. Because the primary government does not
have an equity interest in CADA, CADA'’s financial information is not included in the financial statements of this
report. Separately issued financial statements may be obtained from the Capitol Area Development Authority,
1522 14th Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

5. Related Organizations

A related organization is an organization for which a primary government is accountable because that
government appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board, but for which it is not financially
accountable.

Chapter 854 of the Statutes of 1996 created an Independent System Operator, a state-chartered, nonprofit
market institution. The Independent System Operator provides centralized control of the statewide electrical
transmission grid to ensure the efficient use and reliable operation of the transmission system. A five-member
oversight board, comprised of three appointees of the Governor, an appointee of the Senate Committee on
Rules, and an appointee of the Speaker of the Assembly, oversees the Independent System Operator. In
addition, the Governor appoints the five members of a separate governing board. The State’s accountability for
this institution does not extend beyond making the initial oversight board appointments. Because the primary
government is not financially accountable for the Independent System Operator, the financial information of
this institution is not included in the financial statements of this report. For information on how to obtain copies
of the financial statements of the Independent System Operator, contact the State Controller's Office, Division
of Accounting and Reporting, P.O. Box 942850, Sacramento, CA 94250.

The California Earthquake Authority (CEA), a legally separate organization, offers basic earthquake insurance
for California homeowners, renters, condominium owners, and mobile home owners. A three-member board of
state-elected officials governs the CEA. The State’s accountablility for this institution does not extend beyond
making the appointments. Because the primary government is not financially accountable for the CEA, the
financial information of this institution is not included in the financial statements of this report. For
information on how to obtain copies of the financial statements of the CEA, contact the California Earthquake
Authority, 801 K Street, Suite 1000, Sacramento, CA 95814.

The Bay Area Toll Authority (BATA), which is not part of the State’s reporting entity, was created by the
California Legislature in 1997 to administer a portion of the toll revenues collected from the San Francisco Bay
Area’s seven state-owned toll bridges and to have program oversight related to certain bridge construction
projects. In 2005, the California Legislature transferred toll-bridge administration responsibility from the
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) to BATA. This responsibility includes consolidation of all
toll-bridge revenue under BATA’s administration. BATA is a blended component unit of the Metropolitan
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Transportation Commission. Additional information may be obtained from the Metropolitan Transportation
Commission, 101 Eighth Street, Oakland, California 94607.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements (the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) give
information on all the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. The primary
government is reported separately from legally separate component units for which the State is financially
accountable. Within the primary government, the State’s governmental activities, which are normally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to
a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from the
statements, with the exception of amounts between governmental and business-type activities, which are
presented as internal balances and transfers. Centralized services provided by the General Fund for other
funds are charged as direct costs to the funds that received those services. Also, the General Fund recovers
the cost of centralized services provided to federal programs from the federal government.

The Statement of Net Assets reports all of the financial and capital resources of the government as a whole in
a format where assets equal liabilities plus net assets. The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to
which the expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. Program revenues include charges to
customers who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given
function. Program revenues also include grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items that are not program-related are
reported as general revenues.

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, fiduciary funds and similar
component units, and discretely presented component units. A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a
self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is
used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions.
The State maintains the minimum number of funds consistent with legal and managerial requirements.
Fiduciary funds, although excluded from the government-wide statements, are included in the fund financial
statements. Major governmental and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns in the fund financial
statements. Nonmajor governmental and proprietary funds are grouped into separate columns. Discretely
presented component unit statements, which follow the fiduciary fund statements, also separately report the
enterprise activity of the major discretely presented component units. In this report, the enterprise activity of
nonmajor discretely presented component units is grouped in a separate column.

Governmental fund types are used primarily to account for services provided to the general public without
direct charge.

The State reports the following major governmental funds.

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the State. It accounts for transactions related to resources
obtained and used for those services that do not need to be accounted for in another fund.

The Federal Fund accounts for the receipt and use of grants, entitlements, and shared revenues received
from the federal government.
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The Transportation Construction Fund accounts for fuel taxes, including the State’s diesel, motor vehicle,
and fuel use taxes; bond proceeds; and other revenues that are used for highway and passenger rail
construction.

Proprietary fund types focus on the determination of operating income, changes in net assets, financial
position, and cash flows.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

For its proprietary funds, the State applies all applicable GASB pronouncements. In addition, the State applies
all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting
Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Committee on Accounting Procedure (CAP) Accounting Research
Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements. The State has elected not to apply FASB pronouncements issued after
November 30, 1989, for its enterprise funds.

The State has two proprietary fund types: enterprise funds and internal service funds.
Enterprise funds record business-type activity for which a fee is charged to external users for goods and
services. In addition, the State is required to report activities as enterprise funds in the context of the activity’s
principal revenue sources when any of the following criteria are met:

1. The activity’s debt is secured solely by fees and charges of the activity;

2. There is a legal requirement to recover costs; or

3. The pricing policies of fees and charges are designed to recover costs.

The State reports the following major enterprise funds.

The Electric Power Fund accounts for the acquisition and resale of electric power to retail
end-use customers.

The Water Resources Fund accounts for charges to local water districts and the sale of excess power to
public utilities.

The Public Building Construction Fund accounts for rental charges from the lease of public assets.

The State Lottery Fund accounts for the sale of California State Lottery (Lottery) tickets and the Lottery’s
payments for education.

The Unemployment Programs Fund accounts for employer and worker contributions used for payments of
unemployment insurance and disability benefits.

Nonmajor enterprise funds account for additional operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises.
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Additionally, the State reports internal service funds as a proprietary fund type with governmental activity.
Internal service funds account for goods or services provided to other agencies, departments, or governments
on a cost-reimbursement basis. The goods and services provided include: architectural services, construction
and improvements, printing and procurement services, goods produced by inmates of state prisons, data
processing services, administrative services related to water delivery, and equipment used by the California
Department of Transportation. Internal service funds are included in the governmental activities at the
government-wide level.

Fiduciary fund types are used to account for assets held by the State. The State acts as a trustee or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, or other funds. Fiduciary funds, including
fiduciary component units, are not included in the government-wide financial statements.

The State has the following four fiduciary fund types.

Private purpose trust funds account for all trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in pension
or investment trust funds, whereby principal and income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other
governments.

Pension and other employee benefit trust funds of the primary government and fiduciary component units
account for transactions, assets, liabilities, and net assets available for plan benefits of the retirement
systems and for other employee benefit programs.

An investment trust fund accounts for the deposits, withdrawals, and earnings of the Local Agency
Investment Fund, an external investment pool for local governments and public agencies.

Agency funds account for assets held by the State, which acts as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, or other governments.

Discretely presented component units consist of certain organizations that have enterprise activity. The
enterprise activity component units are the University of California, the State Compensation Insurance Fund,
the California Housing Finance Agency, the Public Employees’ Benefits Fund, and nonmajor component units.
In this report, all of the enterprise activity of the discretely presented component units is reported in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements and on separate pages following the fund financial
statements.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

1. Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when they are earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar
transactions are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

2. Fund Financial Statements

The measurement focus and basis of accounting for the fund financial statements vary with the type of fund.
Governmental fund types are presented using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this
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measurement focus, operating statements present increases and decreases in net current assets; the
unreserved fund balance is a measure of available spendable resources.

The accounts of the governmental fund types are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are recorded as they become measurable and available, and
expenditures are recorded at the time the liabilities are incurred. The State records revenue sources when
they are earned or when they are due, provided they are measurable and available within the ensuing
12 months. Principal tax revenues susceptible to accrual are recorded as taxpayers earn income (personal
income and corporation taxes), as sales are made (consumption and use taxes), and as the taxable event
occurs (miscellaneous taxes), net of estimated tax overpayments.

Proprietary fund types, the investment trust fund, private purpose trust funds, and pension and other
employee benefit trust funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus. Agency
funds are custodial in nature and do not measure the results of operations.

The accounts of the proprietary fund types, the investment trust fund, private purpose trust funds, pension and
other employee benefit trust funds, and agency funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis, most transactions are recorded when they occur, regardless of when cash is received
or disbursed.

Lottery revenue and the related prize expenses are recognized when sales are made. Certain prizes are
payable in deferred installments. Such liabilities are recorded at the present value of amounts payable in
the future.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, all cash and pooled investments in the State Treasurer’s pooled
investment program are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Discretely presented component units are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting.

D. Inventories

Inventories of supplies are reported at cost and inventories held for resale are stated at the lower of average
cost or market. In the government-wide financial statements, inventories for both governmental and
business-type activities are expensed when they are consumed and unused inventories are reported as an
asset on the Statement of Net Assets. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report inventories
as expenditures when purchased, and proprietary funds report inventories as expenditures when consumed.
The discretely presented component units have inventory policies similar to those of the primary government.

E. Deposits and Investments

The State reports investments at fair value, as prescribed by GAAP. Additional information on the State’s
investments can be found in Note 3, Deposits and Investments.

F. Net Investment in Direct Financing Leases
The State Public Works Board, an agency that accounts for its activities as an enterprise fund, has entered

into lease-purchase agreements with various other primary government agencies, the University of California,
and certain local agencies. The payments from these leases are used to satisfy the principal and interest
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requirements of revenue bonds issued by the State Public Works Board to finance the cost of projects such as
acquisition and construction of facilities and equipment. Upon expiration of these leases, title to the facilities
and projects transfers to the primary government agency, the University of California, or the local agency. The
State Public Works Board records the net investment in direct financing leases at the net present value of the
minimum lease payments.

G. Deferred Charges

The deferred charges account primarily represents operating and maintenance costs and unrecovered capital
costs in the enterprise fund type that will be recognized as expenses over the remaining life of long-term state
water supply contracts in the Water Resources Fund. These costs are billable in future years. In addition, the
account includes unbilled interest earnings on unrecovered capital costs that are recorded as deferred
charges. These charges are recognized when billed in future years under the terms of water supply contracts.
The deferred charges for the Public Buildings Construction Fund include bond counsel fees, trustee fees,
rating agency fees, underwriting costs, insurance costs, and miscellaneous expenses. Bond issuance costs
are amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the bonds. Amortization of bond issue costs
during the facility construction period is capitalized and included in the construction costs. Deferred charges
are also included in the State Lottery Fund and nonmajor enterprise funds. Bond issuance costs recorded as
expenditures in certain capital projects and special revenue funds are reclassified as deferred charges in the
governmental activities column of the Statement of Net Assets.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets are categorized into land, state highway infrastructure, collections, buildings and other
depreciable property, and construction in progress. The buildings and other depreciable property account
includes buildings, improvements other than buildings, equipment, personal property, intangible assets, certain
infrastructure assets, certain books, and other capitalized and depreciable property. The value of the capital
assets, including the related accumulated depreciation, is reported in the applicable governmental,
business-type, or component unit activities columns in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

The primary government has a large collection of historical and contemporary treasures that have important
documentary and artistic value. These assets are not capitalized or depreciated because they are cultural
resources and cannot reasonably be valued and/or the assets have inexhaustible useful lives. These treasures
and works of art include furnishings, portraits and other paintings, books, statues, photographs, and
miscellaneous artifacts. These collections meet the conditions for exemption from capitalization because the
collections are: held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, rather than
financial gain; protected, kept unencumbered, cared for, and preserved; and are subject to an organizational
policy that requires the proceeds from sales of collection items to be used to acquire other items for
collections.

In general, capital assets of the primary government are defined as assets that have a normal useful life of at
least one year and a unit acquisition cost of at least $5,000. These assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost, including all costs related to the acquisition. Donated capital assets are recoded at
the fair market value on the date the gift was received. Major capital asset outlays are capitalized as projects
are constructed.

Buildings and other depreciable property are depreciated using the straight-line method with no salvage value
for governmental activities. Generally, buildings and other improvements are depreciated over 40 years and
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equipment is depreciated over five years. Depreciable assets of business-type activities are depreciated using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful or service lives, ranging from three to 100 years.

California has elected to use the modified approach for capitalizing the infrastructure assets of the state
highway system. The state highway system consists of 49,477 lane-miles and 12,155 bridges that are
maintained by the California Department of Transportation. By using the modified approach, the infrastructure
assets of the state highway system are not depreciated and all expenditures made for those assets, except for
additions and improvements, are expensed in the period incurred. All additions and improvements made after
June 30, 2001, are capitalized. All infrastructure assets that are related to projects completed prior to
July 1, 2001, are recorded at the historical costs contained in annual reports of the American Association of
State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) and the Federal Highway Administration.

The capital assets of the discretely presented component units are reported at cost at the date of acquisition or
at fair market value at the date of donation, in the case of gifts. They are depreciated over their estimated
useful service lives.

|. Long-term Obligations

Long-term obligations consist of certain unmatured general obligation bonds, certain unmatured revenue
bonds, capital lease obligations, certificates of participation, commercial paper, the net pension obligation of
the pension and other employee benefit trust funds, the liability for employees’ compensated absences and
workers’ compensation claims, amounts owed for lawsuits, reimbursement for costs mandated by the State,
the outstanding Proposition 98 funding guarantee owed to schools, the liability for Lottery prizes and annuities,
and the primary government’s share of the University of California pension liability that is due in more than one
year. In the government-wide financial statements, current and noncurrent obligations are reported as liabilities
in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, and component units columns of the
Statement of Net Assets.

Bond premiums and discounts for business-type activities and component units are generally deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds. In these instances, bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
premium or discount. Bond premiums and discounts for governmental activities are expensed in the year
incurred in the fund financial statements. In the government-wide financial statements, the revenue bonds
payable for governmental activities is reported net of the applicable premium or discount.

With approval in advance from the Legislature, certain authorities and state agencies may issue revenue
bonds. Principal and interest on revenue bonds are payable from the pledged revenues of the respective
funds, building authorities, and agencies. The General Fund has no legal liability for payment of principal and
interest on revenue bonds. With the exception of certain special revenue funds (Transportation Construction,
California State University Programs, and the Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corporation) and the
building authorities’ capital projects funds, the liability for revenue bonds is recorded in the respective fund.

J. Compensated Absences

The government-wide financial statements report both the current and the noncurrent liabilities for
compensated absences, which are vested unpaid vacation and annual leave. However, unused sick-leave
balances are not included in the compensated absences because they do not vest to employees. In the fund
financial statements for governmental funds, only the compensated absences for employees that have left
state service and have unused reimbursable leave at year-end would be included. The amounts of vested
unpaid vacation and annual leave accumulated by state employees are accrued in proprietary funds when
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incurred. In the discretely presented component units, the compensated absences are accounted for in the
same manner as in the proprietary funds of the primary government.

K. Net Assets and Fund Balance

The difference between fund assets and liabilities is called “net assets” on the government-wide financial
statements, the proprietary and fiduciary fund statements, and the component unit statements; it is called “fund
balance” on the governmental fund statements. The government-wide financial statements have the following
categories of net assets.

Investment in capital assets, net of related debft, represents capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assets result from transactions with purpose restrictions and are designated as either
nonexpendable or expendable. Nonexpendable restricted net assets are subject to externally imposed
restrictions that must be retained in perpetuity. Expendable restricted net assets are subject to externally
imposed restrictions that can be fulfilled by actions of the State. As of June 30, 2007, the government-wide
financial statements show restricted net assets for the primary government of $19.1 billion, of which
$10.0 billion is due to enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net assets are neither restricted nor invested in capital assets, net of related debt.
In the fund financial statements, proprietary funds have categories of net assets similar to those in the
government-wide statements. Governmental funds have two fund balance sections: reserved and unreserved.
Part or all of the total fund balance may be reserved as a result of law or generally accepted accounting
principles. Reserves represent those portions of the fund balances that are segregated for specific uses. The

reserves of the fund balance for governmental funds are as follows.

Reserved for encumbrances represents goods and services that are ordered, but not received, by the end of
the fiscal year.

Reserved for interfund receivables represents the noncurrent portion of advances to other funds that do not
represent expendable available financial resources.

Reserved for loans receivable represents the noncurrent portion of loans receivable that does not represent
expendable available financial resources.

Reserved for continuing appropriations represents the unencumbered balance of all appropriations for which
the period of availability extends beyond the period covered in the report. These appropriations are legally

segregated for a specific future use.

Reserved for debt service represents the amount legally reserved for the payment of bonded indebtedness
that is not available for other purposes until the bonded indebtedness is liquidated.

The unreserved amounts represent the net of total fund balance, less reserves.

Fiduciary fund net assets are “amounts held in trust for benefits and other purposes.”
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L. Restatement of Beginning Fund Balances and Net Assets

1. Fund Financial Statements

The beginning fund balance of the governmental funds increased by a net total of $188 million. This increase
is comprised of an increase of $228 million in loans receivable that were previously omitted and a decrease of
$40 million as a result of prior-period adjustments to correct errors in nonmajor governmental funds. Due to
a reclassification of funds, there was also a beginning fund balance increase in the Transportation
Construction Fund and an offsetting decrease in the nonmajor governmental funds.

The beginning net assets of the internal service funds decreased by $2 million for a prior-period adjustment
of revenue for the Department of Technology.

The beginning net assets of the nonmajor enterprise funds increased by a net total of $12 million as a result
of a prior-period adjustment for the previous ommission of capital assets.

Beginning net assets of the discretely presented component units — enterprise activity increased by a
total of $22 million. This increase was the result of prior-period adjustments to correct errors, including the
ommision of $21 million in loans receivable.

2. Government-wide Financial Statements

The beginning net assets of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and the component
units were restated as described in the previous section for governmental funds, nonmajor enterprise funds,
and discretely presented component units — enterprise activity, respectively. In addition, the beginning net
assets of the governmental activities decreased by $458 million as a result of prior-period adjustments to
correct for overstated capital assets and by $477 million as a result of a change in the methodology for
calculating the net pension obligation, a noncurrent liability.

M. Guaranty Deposits

The State is custodian of guaranty deposits held to protect consumers, to secure the State’s deposits in
financial institutions, and to ensure payment of taxes and fulfilment of obligations to the State. Guaranty
deposits of securities and other properties are not shown on the financial statements.

NOTE 2: BUDGETARY AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

A. Budgeting and Budgetary Control

The State’s annual budget is prepared primarily on a modified accrual basis for governmental funds. The
Governor recommends a budget for approval by the Legislature each year. This recommended budget
includes estimated revenues; however, revenues are not included in the annual budget bill adopted by the
Legislature. Under state law, the State cannot adopt a spending plan that exceeds estimated revenues.

Under the State Constitution, money may be drawn from the treasury only through a legal appropriation. The

appropriations contained in the Budget Act, as approved by the Legislature and signed by the Governor, are
the primary sources of annual expenditure authorizations and establish the legal level of control for the annual
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operating budget. The budget can be amended throughout the year by special legislative action, budget
revisions by the Department of Finance, or executive orders of the Governor.

Amendments to the original budget for the year ended June 30, 2007, were legally made, and they had the
effect of increasing spending authority for the General Fund and decreasing spending authority for the
Transportation Construction Fund.

Appropriations are generally available for expenditure or encumbrance either in the year appropriated or for a
period of three years if the legislation does not specify a period of availability. At the end of the availability
period, the encumbering authority for the unencumbered balance lapses. Some appropriations continue
indefinitely, while others are available until fully spent. Generally, encumbrances must be liquidated within
two years from the end of the period in which the appropriation is available. If the encumbrances are not
liquidated within this additional two-year period, the spending authority for these encumbrances lapses.

B. Legal Compliance

State agencies are responsible for exercising basic budgetary control and ensuring that appropriations are not
overspent. The State Controller’'s Office is responsible for overall appropriation control and does not allow
expenditures in excess of authorized appropriations.

Financial activities are mainly controlled at the appropriation level but can vary, depending on the presentation
and wording contained in the Budget Act. Certain items that are established at the category, program,
component, or element level can be adjusted by the Department of Finance. For example, an appropriation for
support may have detail accounts for personal services, operating expenses and equipment, and
reimbursements. The Department of Finance can authorize adjustments between the detail accounts but
cannot increase the amount of the overall support appropriation. While the financial activities are controlled at
various levels, the legal level of budgetary control, or the extent to which management may amend the budget
without seeking approval of the governing body, has been established in the Budget Act for the annual
operating budget.

NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The State Treasurer administers a single pooled investment program comprising both an internal investment
pool and an external investment pool (the Local Agency Investment Fund). A single portfolio of investments
exists, with all participants having an undivided interest in the portfolio. Both pools are administered in the
same manner, as described below.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, certain risk disclosures are included in this note to
the extent that the risks exist at the date of the statement of net assets. Disclosure of the following risks are
included:

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the value of fixed-income securities will decline because of changing
interest rates. The prices of fixed-income securities with longer time to maturity tend to be more sensitive to

changes in interest rates than those with shorter durations.

Credit Risk is the risk that a debt issuer will fail to pay interest or principal in a timely manner, or that
negative perceptions of the issuer’s ability to make these payments will cause security prices to decline.
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Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that, in the event a financial institution or counterparty fails, the investor will
not be able to recover the value of deposits, investments, or collateral.

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an investor’s holdings in a
single issuer.

Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment or a deposit.

A. Primary Government

The State’s pooled investment program and certain funds of the primary government are allowed by state
statutes, bond resolutions, and investment policy resolutions to invest in United States government securities,
Federal agency securities, negotiable certificates of deposit, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper,
corporate bonds, bank notes, other debt securities, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements,
and other investments.

Certain discretely presented component units participate in the State Treasurer's Office pooled investment
program. As of June 30, 2007, the discretely presented component units accounted for approximately 3.2% of
the State Treasurer's pooled investment portfolio. This program enables the State Treasurer's Office to
combine available cash from all funds and to invest cash that exceeds current needs.

Both deposits and investments are included in the State’s investment program. For certain banks, the State
Treasurer’s Office maintains cash deposits that cover uncleared checks deposited in the State’s accounts and
that earn income which compensates the banks for their services.

Demand and time deposits held by financial institutions as of June 30, 2007, totaling approximately
$9.0 billion, were insured by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the State Treasurer’s Office
or an agent of the State Treasurer’s Office in the State’s name. The California Government Code requires that
collateral pledged for demand and time deposits be deposited with the State Treasurer.

As of June 30, 2007, the State Treasurer's Office had amounts on deposit with a fiscal agent totaling
$29 million related to principal and interest payments to bondholders. Additionally, $6 million was in a
compensating balance account with a custodial agent to provide sufficient earnings to cover fees for custodial
services. These deposits were also insured by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by an agent of
the State Treasurer’s Office in the State’s name.

The State Treasurer’s Office reports its investments at fair value. The fair value of securities in the State
Treasurer’s pooled investment program generally is based on quoted market prices. As of June 30, 2007, the
weighted average maturity of the securities in the pooled investment program administered by the State
Treasurer's Office was approximately 138 days. Weighted average maturity is the average number of days,
given a dollar-weighted value of individual investments, that the securities in the portfolio have remaining from
evaluation date to stated maturity.

The Pooled Money Investment Board provides oversight of the State Treasurer’s pooled investment program.
The purpose of the board is to design an effective cash management and investment program, using all
moneys flowing through the State Treasurer’s Office bank accounts and keeping all available funds invested in
a manner consistent with the goals of safety, liquidity, and yield. The Pooled Money Investment Board is
comprised of the State Treasurer as chair, the State Controller, and the Director of Finance. This board
designates the amounts of money available for investment. The State Treasurer is charged with making the
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actual investment transactions for this program. This investment program is not registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission as an investment company.

The value of the deposits in the State Treasurer's pooled investment program, including the Local Agency
Investment Fund, is equal to the dollars deposited in the program. The fair value of the position in the program
may be greater or less than the value of the deposits, with the difference representing the unrealized gain or
loss. As of June 30, 2007, this difference was immaterial to the valuation of the program. The pool is run with
“dollar-in, dollar-out” participation. There are no share-value adjustments to reflect changes in fair value.

Certain funds have elected to participate in the pooled investment program, even though they have the
authority to make their own investments. Others may be required by legislation to participate in the program.
As a result, the deposits of these funds or accounts may be considered involuntary. However, these funds or
accounts are part of the State’s reporting entity. The remaining participation in the pool, the Local Agency
Investment Fund, is voluntary.

Certain funds that have deposits in the State Treasurer’'s pooled investment program do not receive the
interest earnings on their deposits. Instead, by law, the earnings are to be assigned to the State’s General
Fund. Some of the $537 million in interest revenue received by the General Fund from the pooled investment
program in the 2006-07 fiscal year was earned on balances in these funds.

The State Treasurer’s pooled investment program values participants’ shares on an amortized cost basis.
Specifically, the program distributes income to participants quarterly, based on their relative participation
during the quarter. This participation is calculated based on (1) realized investment gains and losses
calculated on an amortized cost basis, (2) interest income based on stated rates (both paid and accrued),
(3) amortization of discounts and premiums on a straight-line basis, and (4) investment and administrative
expenses. This amortized cost method differs from the fair value method used to value investments in these
financial statements; the amortized cost method is not designed to distribute to participants all unrealized
gains and losses in the fair value of the pool’s investments. Because the total difference between the fair value
of the investments in the pool and the value distributed to pool participants using the amortized cost method
described above is not material, no adjustment was made to the financial statements.

The State Treasurer’s Office also reports participant fair value as a ratio of amortized cost on a quarterly basis.
The State Treasurer’s Office has not provided or obtained a legally binding guarantee to support the principal
invested in the investment program.

As of June 30, 2007, structured notes and asset-backed securities comprised slightly less than 3.5% of the
pooled investments. A significant portion of the asset-backed securities consists of small-business loans and
mortgage-backed securities. The small-business loans held in the portfolio are guaranteed by the Small
Business Administration, an agency of the federal government. The mortgage-backed securities, which are
called real estate mortgage investment conduits (REMICs), are securities backed by pools of mortgages. The
REMICs in the State’s portfolio have a fixed principal payment schedule. A portion of the asset-backed
securities consisted of floating-rate notes. For floating-rate notes held in the portfolio during the fiscal year, the
interest received by the State Treasurer’s pooled investment program rose or fell as the underlying index rate
rose or fell. The structure of the floating-rate notes in the State Treasurer's pooled investment program
portfolio provided a hedge against the risk of increasing interest rates.

Enterprise funds and special revenue funds also make separate investments, which are presented at fair
value.
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Table 1 identifies the investment types that are authorized by the California Government Code and the State
Treasurer’s Office investment policy for the pooled investment program.

Table 1

Authorized Investments

Maximum Maximum Percentage Maximum Investment Credit
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer Rating
U.S. Treasury Securities 5 years* N/A** N/A** N/A**
Federal Agency Securities 5 years* N/A** N/A** N/A**
Certificates of Deposit 5 years* N/A** N/A** N/A**
Bankers Acceptances 180 days™ N/A** N/A** N/A**
Commercial Paper 180 days 30% 10% of issuer’s outstanding A-2/P-2/F-2***

Commercial Paper

Corporate Bonds/Notes 5 years* N/A** N/A** A/AJAT**
Repurchase Agreements 1 year* N/A** N/A** N/A**
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 1 year* 10%* N/A** N/A**

* Limitations are pursuant to the State Treasurer’s Office Investment Policy for the Pooled Money Investment Account. The
Government Code does not establish limits for investments of surplus moneys in this investment type.
** N/A = Neither the Government Code nor the State Treasurer’s Office Investment Policy for the Pooled Money Investment Account
sets limits for the investment of surplus moneys in this investment type.
*** The State Treasurer’s Office Investment Policy for the Pooled Money Investment account is more restrictive than the Government
Code, which allows investments rated A-3/P-3/F-3.
**** The Government Code requires that a security fall within the top three ratings of a nationally recognized rating service.
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1. Interest Rate Risk
Table 2 presents the interest rate risk of the primary government’s investments.

Table 2

Schedule of Investments — Primary Government — Interest Rate Risk
June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

Weighted
Average
Interest Fair Value Maturity
Rates* Maturity at Year End (in years)
Pooled investments
U.S. Treasury bills and notes ...........cccecceeeieenneennen. 4.77 - 4.97 12 days - 180 days $ 3,362,656 0.24
U.S. agency bonds and discount notes ................... 3.01-5.64 6 days - 2.45 years 13,227,874 0.71
Small Business Administration loans .............c........ 5.55-6.38 0.25 year 629,834 0.25 **
Mortgage-backed securities # .............coccooovveennnn. 3.92-14.25 124 days - 8.13 years 840,984 3.88
Certificates of deposit .........cccceeceiiiiiiiiiiciee, 5.27-5.34 2 days - 180 days 15,594,616 0.18
Commercial PAPEN .......cceerviiiieiieiee e 5.17 -5.39 2 days - 121 days 14,471,657 0.11
Corporate bonds and Notes ...........ccceceevveecieeneenne, 4.30 - 5.50 20 days - 2.33 years 1,683,796 0.40
Total pooled investments 49,811,417 @
Other primary government investments
U.S. Treasuries and gENCIES .......c.cccuiiirieiiieiieiit ittt ettt sre st sr e e b e s ne e sanesre e 1,996,805 4.71 ***
COMMEICIAI PAPET ...ttt ettt et e e bt st e et e e bt e sb e e sneesaeeeneebeen 868,963 N/A ****
Guaranteed iNVeStMEeNnt CONTIACES ............oeiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e e e e 602,683 14.14
583,619 1.42
996,057 0.57
5,048,127
Funds outside primary government included in pooled investments
Less: iNvestMENt trust fUNAS ........oooi i 19,990,748
Less: other trust and agency fUNAS ..........cooiiiiiii i 2,331,496
Less: discretely presented COMPONENT UNILS .......ccueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiesiiee et eiee e e 2,081,871
Total primary government investments ... $ 30,455,429

* These numbers represent high and low interest rates for each investment type.

*

*

In calculating SBA holdings’ weighted average maturity, the State Treasurer’s Office assumes stated maturity is the quarterly reset date.
*** This amount includes $495,000 of U.S. Treasuries and agencies securities held by the Golden State Tobacco Securitization
Corporation that mature in less than one year.
**** These commercial paper holdings of the California State University and the Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corporation mature in less than one
year.
These securities are issued by U. S. government agencies such as the Federal National Mortgage Association.
Total pooled investments does not include certain assets of the State’s pooled investment program. The other assets include
$8.7 billion of time deposits and $7.2 billion of loans to State funds, which are reported as cash in the respective funds.
" Total other primary government investments include approximately $22 million of cash equivalents that are included in Cash and Pooled Investments.
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Table 3 identifies the debt securities that are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations (to a greater degree
than already indicated in the information provided previously).

Table 3

Schedule of Highly Sensitive Investments in Debt Securities — Primary Government — Interest Rate Risk
June 30, 2007

(amounts in thousands)

% of Total
Fair Value Pooled
Pooled investments at Year End Investments
Mortgage-backed
Federal National Mortgage Association Collateralized Mortgage Obligations ...............c.......... $ 840,265 1.686 %
Government National Mortgage Association POOIS ............ccccociiiiiiiiiiiic e 231 0.000
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Participation Certificate Pools ..............cccccceeeens 488 0.001

These mortgage-backed securities entitle the purchaser to receive a share of the cash flows, such as principal and interest
payments, from a pool of mortgages. Mortgage securities are sensitive to interest rate changes because principal prepayments
either increase (in a low interest rate environment) or decrease (in a high interest rate environment). A change, up or down, in
the payment rate will result in a change in the security yield.
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2. Credit Risk

Table 4 presents the credit risk of the primary government’s debt securities.

Table 4

Schedule of Investments in Debt Securities — Primary Government — Credit Risk
June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

Credit Rating as of Year End

Short-term Long-term Fair Value

Pooled investments*

A-1+/P-1/F-1+ AAA/Aaa/AAA $ 35,274,735 **
A-1/P-1/F-1 AA/Aa/AA 8,026,780
A-2/P-2/F-2 A/A/A 1,676,428
Notrated ......ccccvveveeeiie e, 840,753
Not applicable ..... 3,992,721
Total pooled investments .........cccceeevereerererenens $ 49,811,417 ™
Other primary government investments
A-1+/P-1/F-1+ AAA/Aaa/AAA $ 1,101,388
A-1/P-1/F-1 AA/Aa/AA 772,659
A-2/P-2/F-2 A/AJA 769,220
Notrated ......cccvveeeeiiieee e 549,548
Not applicable 1,855,312

Total other primary government investments $ 5,048,127

* The State Treasurer’s Office utilizes Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s, and Fitch ratings services. Securities are classified by the lowest
rating of the three agencies.

** This amount includes $6.6 billion in Freddie Mac-issued debt. Freddie Mac has not requested that all of its debt be rated, but all debt
that has been rated received S&P’s and Moody’s top ratings.

*** Total pooled investments does not include certain assets of the State’s pooled investment program. The other assets include time
deposits of $8.7 billion, for which credit risk is mitigated by collateral that the State holds for them—as discussed earlier in this
note—and loans to State funds of $7.2 billion, for which external credit risk is not applicable because they are internal loans.
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3. Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the State Treasurer's Office contains no limitations on the amount that can be
invested in any one issuer beyond those limitations stipulated in the California Government Code. Table 5
identifies debt securities in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities) that represent 5% or more of
the State Treasurer’s investments, or of the separate investments of other primary government funds.

Table 5

Schedule of Investments — Primary Government — Concentration of Credit Risk
June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

POOLED INVESTMENTS

% of Total
Reported Pooled
Issuer Investment Type Amount Investments
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. U.S. agency securities $ 6,553,214 13.16 %
Federal Home Loan Bank U.S. agency securities 5,831,586 11.71
Citigroup, Inc Corporate Bonds/Commercial Paper 2,743,368 5.51
General Electric Capital/GE Company Corporate Bonds/Commercial Paper 2,649,884 5.32
OTHER PRIMARY GOVERNMENT INVESTMENTS
% of Total
Reported Agency
Issuer Investment Type Amount Investments
Golden State Tobacco Securitization Corporation
Coral Commercial paper $ 58,378 12.39 %
Briarwood Commercial paper 63,514 13.48
Morgan Stanley Commercial paper 74,633 15.84
Security Benefit Life Insurance Commercial paper 65,021 13.80
Curzon Commercial paper 63,985 13.58
Chesham Commercial paper 74,633 15.84
Natexis Banques Populaires Commercial paper 65,870 13.98
Department of Water Resources
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp. U.S. agency securities $ 50,722 41.61 %

4. Custodial Credit Risk

The State of California has a deposit policy for custodial credit risk that requires deposits held by financial
institutions to be insured by federal depository insurance or secured by collateral. As of June 30, 2007,
$24 million in deposits of the Electric Power Fund were uninsured and uncollateralized.
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B. Fiduciary Funds

The fiduciary funds include pension and other employee benefit trust funds of the following fiduciary funds and
component units: the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), the California State
Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS), the fund for the California Scholarshare program, and various other
funds. CalPERS and CalSTRS account for 98% of these separately invested funds.

CalPERS and CalSTRS exercise their authority under the State Constitution and invest in stocks, bonds,
mortgages, real estate, and other investments.

CalPERS reports investments in securities at fair value, generally based on published market prices and
quotations from major investment firms. Many factors are considered in arriving at fair value. In general,
however, corporate bonds are valued based on yields currently available on comparable securities of issuers
with similar credit ratings. Investments in certain restricted common stocks are valued at the quoted market
price of the issuer’s unrestricted common stock, less an appropriate discount.

CalPERS’ mortgages are valued on the basis of their future principal and interest payments, discounted at
prevailing interest rates for similar instruments. The fair value of real estate investments, principally rental
property subject to long-term net leases, is estimated based on independent appraisals. Short-term
investments are reported at market value, when available, or, when market value is not available, at cost plus
accrued interest, which approximates market value. For investments where no readily ascertainable market
value exists, management, in consultation with its investment advisors, determines the fair values for the
individual investments.

Under the State Constitution and statutory provisions governing CalPERS’ investment authority, CalPERS,
through its outside investment managers, holds investments in futures and options and enters into forward
foreign currency exchange contracts. CalPERS held for investment purposes futures and options with a fair
value of approximately $30 million as of June 30, 2007. Gains and losses on futures and options are
determined based upon quoted market values and recorded in the statement of changes in fiduciary
net assets.

Due to the level of risk associated with certain derivative investment securities, it is reasonably possible that
investment securities values will change in the near term; such changes could materially affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements.

CalPERS uses forward foreign currency exchange contracts primarily to hedge against changes in exchange
rates related to foreign securities. As of June 30, 2007, CalPERS had an approximately $30 million net
exposure to loss from forward foreign currency exchange transactions related to the approximately
$54.8 billion international debt and equity portfolios. CalPERS could be exposed to risk if the counterparties to
the contracts are unable to meet the terms of the contracts. CalPERS investment managers seek to control
this risk through counterparty credit evaluations and approvals, counterparty credit limits, and exposure
monitoring procedures. CalPERS anticipates that the counterparties will be able to satisfy their obligations
under the contracts.

CalSTRS also reports investments at fair value, generally based on published market prices and quotations
from major investment firms for securities. Mortgages are valued based on future principal and interest
payments, and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar instruments. Real estate equity investment
fair values are based on either recent estimates provided by CalSTRS’ contract real estate advisors or by
independent appraisers. Short-term investments are reported at cost or amortized cost, which approximates
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fair value. Fair value for commingled funds (other than those funds traded on a national or international
exchange) is based on information provided by the applicable fund managers. Alternative investments
represent interests in private equity partnerships that CalSTRS enters into under a limited partnership
agreement. For alternative investments and other investments for which no readily ascertainable market value
exists, CalSTRS management, in consultation with its investment advisors, has determined the fair value for
the individual investments. Purchases and sales are recorded on the trade date.

The State Constitution, state statutes, and board policies permit CalPERS and CalSTRS to lend their
securities to broker-dealers and other entities with a simultaneous agreement to return the collateral for the
same securities in the future. Third-party securities lending agents are under contract to lend domestic and
international equity and debt securities. For both CalPERS and CalSTRS, collateral, in the form of cash or
other securities, is required at 102% and 105% of the fair value of domestic and international securities
loaned, respectively. CalPERS’ management believes that CalPERS has minimized its credit risk exposure by
requiring the borrowers to provide collateral greater than 100% of the market value of the securities loaned.
The securities loaned are priced daily. Securities on loan can be recalled on demand by CalPERS and loans
of securities may be terminated by CalPERS or the borrower.

For CalPERS, the weighted average maturities of the collateral invested by two externally managed
portfolios and two internally managed portfolios were 46 days, 158 days, 547 days, and 410 days. In
accordance with CalPERS’ investment guidelines, the cash collateral was invested in short-term investment
funds that, at June 30, 2007, had durations of 1 day, 18 days, 36 days, and 40 days, for two externally
managed portfolios and two internally managed portfolios.

For CalSTRS, collateral received on each security loan was placed in investments that, at June 30, 2007, had
a 25-day difference in weighted average maturity between the investments and loans. Most of CalSTRS’
security loans can be terminated on demand by CalSTRS or the borrower. As of June 30, 2007, CalSTRS has
no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts it owes the borrowers exceed the amounts the
borrowers owe it. CalSTRS is not permitted to pledge or sell collateral securities received unless the borrower
defaults. The contracts with the security lending agents require them to indemnify CalSTRS if the borrowers
fail to return the securities (or if the collateral is not sufficient to replace the securities lent) or if the borrowers
fail to pay CalSTRS for income distributions by the securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan.
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Table 6 presents the investments of the fiduciary funds by investment type.

Table 6

Schedule of Investments - Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

Fair Value
Investment Type
EQUITY SECUNLIES .....eiutieiiietie ettt ettt a e et e st e e bt e she e e s bt e sae e et e e s ase e ebe e saee e seesabeenbeaembeesheesnseenseeenbennanaanne $ 256,590,799

Debt securities® 101,817,056
735,404

7,761,185
38,113,015
322,606
29,456,424
78,404,152
1,203,057

$ 514,403,698

* Debt securities include short-term investments not included in Cash and Pooled Investments.

1. Interest Rate Risk

CalPERS and CalSTRS manage the interest rate risk inherent in their investment portfolios by measuring the
effective or option-adjusted duration of the portfolio. In using the duration method, these agencies may make
assumptions regarding the timing of cash flows or other factors that affect interest rate risk information. The
CalPERS investment policies require the option-adjusted duration of the total fixed-income portfolio to stay
within 20% of the option adjusted duration of its benchmark (Lehman Brothers Long Liabilities). All individual
portfolios are required to maintain a specific level of risk relative to their benchmark. Risk exposures are
monitored daily. The CalSTRS investment guidelines allow the internally managed long-term investment grade
portfolios the discretion to deviate within plus or minus .50 years from the effective duration of the relevant
Lehman Brothers benchmark. The permissible range of deviation for the effective duration within the high yield
portfolios is negotiated with each of the high yield managers and detailed in the investment guidelines. The
CalSTRS investment guidelines state that 50% of the portfolio shall reflect an expected-maturity, first-call date
or first-reset date to fall within a 0-30 day range and/or be invested in U.S. government and agency
obligations.
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Table 7 presents the interest rate risk of the fixed-income securities of these fiduciary funds.

Table 7

Schedule of Investments in Fixed-Income Securities - Fiduciary Funds - Interest Rate Risk

June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

Fair Value at Effective
Year End Duration™*
California Public Employees’ Retirement Fund *
U.S. Treasuries and gENCIES .......ccoruiriueirieaiiee e eiee e siee e seeesae st e e saeeseeenens $ 16,650,258 9.01
Mortgages .... ... 25,256,693 6.39
(070 T4 0T ] - | LTS UUSPRPRUSURPRUPOt 13,447,274 8.69
ASSEE-DACKEA ... e 1,322,684 3.65
Private placement .. . 9,161 2.06
INEEINALIONAL ... e e 6,778,416 6.96
[N 0 £ L (=T PP PSPPI 3,323,270 N/A
Total $ 66,787,756
Deferred Compensation Plan Fund
INVESTMENT CONTIACES......eiiiiie it e e e $ 735,404 5.49
Scholarshare Program Trust Fund
INVESTMENT CONLIACES ....vviiiiiiieeeeee e e e e e e $ 322,606 3.38
California State Teachers’ Retirement System
Long-term fixed-income investments
U.S. Government and agency obligations ............ccocuerveeiieiiecnieniee e $ 6,985,280 4.44
(7] e o) - 1 (= SRS TSSSSR 7,362,539 5.89
HIGN YIEIO .. e 2,439,546 3.76
[T o Qoo (= o] 1= SRR 5,289,592 4.81
ASSEt-DACKEA SECUITIES ...eeieeeeeeiieie e e 621,379 2.76
Commercial mortgage-backed SECUNtIES ........ccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e 1,651,684 4.80
Mortgage-backed SECUILIES .........ceiiiieiiriiieeee et 10,904,463 417
Total SR $ 35,254,483
0-30 31-90 91-120
days days days
Short-term fixed-income investments
MoNEY MArket SECUIMHES .....c.veveeieeeiereieieeie et $ 615,022 242909 $ 79,608
COrpPOrate DONGAS .....coiueiiiiiitieiiee ettt san e — 15,000 14,997
Corporate floating-rate notes 101,601 179,545 17,000
U.S. Government and agency obligations
NONCAIADIES .......vevieeveeiiietieieteee ettt ettt ae et be e b e bene 40,000 10,000 —
DISCOUNE NOES .....veuvvieietieceiete ettt tete ettt ettt e st as et st ns et aeetebasnenan 24,957 124,138 49,254
CaAllADIE ... e 49,235 166,652 10,000
ULS. TIASUIY ...eeueeiuieeieieeteeeeeieeeete ettt sttt ee e se bt bese s eae e eaene s ese e enenis — 24,712 49,244
ASSEt-DACKEA SECUNMLIES ....vcvevevieitieiiieteeiete ettt ettt aene s 22,832 26,444 —
Total S $ 853647 $ 789,400 $ 220,103

* Includes investments of fiduciary funds and certain discretely presented component units that CalPERS administers.

** Effective duration is described in the paragraph preceding this table.
*** Securities held in externally managed investment pools or in default.
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121-180 181-365 366+ Fair Value at
days days days Year End

— 3 — 3 — $ 937,539

— — — 29,997

— 25,000 — 323,146

— — — 50,000
24,571 62,704 — 285,624
13,984 — — 239,871
98,285 48,804 4,976 226,021
— — — 49,276
136,840 $ 136,508 $ 4,976 $ 2,141,474
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2. Credit Risk

The CalPERS investment policies require that 90% of the total fixed-income portfolio be invested in
investment-grade securities. Investment-grade securities are those fixed-income securities with a Moody’s
rating of AAA to BAA or a Standard and Poor’s rating of AAA to BBB. Each portfolio is required to maintain a
specified risk level. Portfolio exposures are monitored daily. The CalSTRS investment guidelines require that
the lowest long-term credit rating of securities eligible for purchase by the internally managed fixed-income
assets be Baa3 by Moody’s Investor Services or BBB- by Standard and Poor’s Corporation (i.e., investment
grade by at least one major rating agency). Furthermore, the total position of the outstanding debt of any one
issuer shall be limited to 10% of the market value of the portfolio. The investment guidelines also include an
allocation to high yield assets that are managed externally and allow for the purchase of bonds rated below
investment grade. Limitations on the amount of debt of any one issuer a manager may hold are negotiated on
a manager-by-manager basis.

Table 8 presents the credit risk of the fixed-income securities of these fiduciary funds.

Table 8

Schedule of Investments in Fixed-Income Securities — Fiduciary Funds — Credit Risk
June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

Credit Rating as of Year End

Short-term Long-term Fair Value
A-1+/P-1/F-1+ AAA/Aaa/AAA $ 52,703,294
A-1/P-1/F-1 AA/Aa/AA 17,876,011
A-2/P-2/F-2 A/A/A 12,640,373
A-3/P-3/F-3 BBB/Baa/BBB 11,492,807
B/NP/B BB/Ba/BB 1,472,108
B/NP/B B/B/B 1,710,671
C/NP/C CCC/Caa/CCC 580,115
C/NP/C CC/Ca/CC 63
D/NP/D D/D/D 19,079

NOtrated .......eveeeieeeeee e 18,384,152
Not applicable .........cooiiiiiiiie e 20,080,413
Total fixed-income securities ........ccceeecemrrrrrrrrceeeenrennens $ 136,959,086

3. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Deferred Compensation Plan Fund held $735 million in investment contracts of Dwight Asset
Management Company, which represented 10.3% of the fund’s total investments as of June 30, 2007. The
Scholarshare Program Trust Fund held $323 million in investment contracts of TIAA-CREF Life Insurance
Company, which represented 11.82% of the fund’s total investments as of June 20, 2007.

CalPERS and CalSTRS did not have investments in a single issuer that represented 5% or more of total fair
value of all investments.
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4. Custodial Credit Risk

CalPERS and CalSTRS have policies or practices to minimize custodial risk, and their investments at
June 30, 2007, were not exposed to custodial risk.

5. Foreign Currency Risk

At June 30, 2007, CalPERS and CalSTRS held $22.3 billion and $34.5 billion, respectively, in investments
subject to foreign currency risk. CalPERS’ asset allocation and investment policies allow for active and passive
investments in international securities. CalPERS’ target allocation is to have 33% of total global equity assets
invested in international equities and 11.5% of total fixed-income invested in international securities. Real
estate and alternative investments do not have a target allocation for international investment. CalPERS uses
a currency overlay program to reduce risk by hedging approximately 25% of the developed market
international equity portfolio. Its currency exposures are monitored daily. CalSTRS believes that its Currency
Management Program should emphasize the protection of the value of its non-dollar public and private equity
assets against a strengthening U.S. dollar first, yet recognizes that opportunities also exist for alpha
generation (the ability to derive a return in excess of a market return) within the currency markets. CalSTRS’
fixed-income staff has management responsibilities for the Currency Management Program. The hedging
range has been designed to allow for some degree of symmetry around the unhedged program benchmark in
order to enable the Currency Management Program to both protect the translation value fo the assets against
a strengthening U.S. dollar and to enhance returns in a declining U.S. dollar environment. As a result, the
hedging range is -25% to 50% of the total market value of the non-dollar public and private equity portfolios.
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Table 9 identifies the investments of the fiduciary funds that are subject to foreign currency risk.

Table 9

Schedule of Investments - Fiduciary Funds - Foreign Currency Risk
June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars at fair value)

Fixed Currency
Currency Cash Equity Alternative Income Real Estate Overlay Total
Argentine Peso ............... $ 1,472 $ — 3 —  $ — — 3 — 3 1,472
Australian Dollar ............. 15,648 2,206,914 35,355 168,733 262 (174,691) 2,252,221
Brazilian Real ................. 4,113 1,029,241 — 25,543 — (14,107) 1,044,790
British Pound Sterling ..... 70,256 8,339,621 479,827 487,097 14,727 (479,744) 8,911,784
Canadian Dollar 22,173 1,710,414 81,431 100,606 — (85,247 1,829,377
Chilean Peso .................. 2,759 55,571 — — — — 58,330
Columbian Peso ............. — — — 867 — — 867
Czech Koruna ................. 609 32,809 — — — (428) 32,990
Danish Krone .................. 7,382 299,071 804 179,296 — — 486,553
Egyptian Pound .............. 293 110,532 — — — — 110,825
EUrO oo, 233,949 17,872,122 1,208,531 1,559,306 — (961,676) 19,912,232
Hong Kong Dollar ........... 13,941 1,675,095 — — 481 (8,192) 1,681,325
Hungarian Forint ............. 992 177,127 — 1,944 — (12,805) 167,258
Indian Rupee .................. 2,730 751,406 — — — — 754,136
Indonesian Rupiah .......... 918 232,142 — — — — 233,060
Israeli Shekel .................. 1,061 219,021 — 1 — — 220,083
Japanese Yen ................. 70,352 7,531,594 24,426 587,825 812 (41,317) 8,173,692
Malaysian Ringgit ........... 188 308,151 — — — — 308,339
Mexican Peso ................. 1,157 619,465 — 13,652 — (67,730) 566,544
Moroccan Dirham — 104 — — — — 104
New Russian Ruble......... — — — — — (25,491) (25,491)
New Zealand Dollar ........ 198 57,377 — 35,747 — (22,330) 70,992
Norwegian Krone ............ 4,906 551,051 — 33,658 — (40,788) 548,827
Philippine Peso ............... 18,757 84,672 — — — — 103,429
Polish Zloty ........ccecueeneee. 303 99,260 — 61,262 — (80,832) 79,993
Singapore Dollar ............. 6,038 581,364 — — 713 (121) 587,994
South African Rand ........ 9,697 958,743 — — — — 968,440
South Korean Won ......... 1,545 2,111,092 — 32,215 — — 2,144,852
Sri Lanka Rupee ............. — 724 — — — — 724
Swedish Krona ............... 12,772 1,074,035 — 51,698 — (711) 1,137,794
Swiss Franc ........cccoceeeee 14,562 2,607,003 394 — — (39,261) 2,582,698
Taiwan Dollar .................. 18,221 1,601,068 — — — — 1,619,289
Thailand Baht ...... 3,321 320,697 — — — — 324,018
Turkish New Lira ............. 5,298 371,311 — 2,536 — (6,133) 373,012

Total exposure to
foreign currency risk.. $ 545,611 $ 53,588,797 $ 1,830,768 $ 3,341,986 $ 16,995 $ (2,061,604) $ 57,262,553
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C. Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented component units consist of the University of California and its foundations, the State
Compensation Insurance Fund (SCIF), the California Housing Finance Agency (CalHFA), the Public
Employees’ Benefits Fund administered by CalPERS, and various funds that constitute less than 3% of the
total investments of discretely presented component units. State law, bond resolutions, and investment policy
resolutions allow component units to invest in U.S. government securities, state and municipal securities,
commercial paper, corporate bonds, investment agreements, real estate, and other investments. Additionally,
a portion of the cash and pooled investments of SCIF, CalHFA, and other component units is invested in the
State Treasurer’s pooled investment program.

The investments of the University of California, a discretely presented component unit, are primarily stated at
fair value. Investments authorized by the regents include equity securities, fixed-income securities, and certain
other asset classes. The equity portion of the investment portfolio includes domestic and foreign common and
preferred stocks, which may be included in actively or passively managed strategies, along with a modest
exposure to private equities. Private equities include venture capital partnerships, buy-outs, and international
funds. The fixed-income portion of the investment portfolio may include both domestic and foreign securities,
as well as certain securitized investments including mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. Absolute
return strategies, incorporating short sales, plus derivative positions to implement or hedge an investment
position, are also authorized. Where donor agreements have placed constraints on allowable investments,
assets associated with endowments are invested in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

The University of California participates in a securities lending program as a means to augment income.
Campus foundations’ cash, cash equivalents, and investments that are invested with the University of
California and managed by the university’s treasurer are included in the university’s investment pools that
participate in a securities lending program. The campus foundations’ allocated share of the program’s cash
collateral received, investment of cash collateral, and collateral held for securities lending is determined based
upon the foundations’ equity in the investment pools. The Board of Trustees for each campus foundation may
also authorize participation in a direct securities lending program. The university loans securities to selected
brokerage firms and receives collateral that equals or exceeds the fair value of such investments during the
period of the loan. Collateral may be cash or securities issued by the U.S. government or its agencies, or the
sovereign or provincial debt of foreign countries. Collateral securities cannot be pledged or sold by the
university unless the borrower defaults. Loans of domestic equities and all fixed-income securities are initially
collateralized at 102% of the fair value of the securities loaned. Loans of foreign equities are initially
collateralized at 105%. All borrowers are required to provide additional collateral by the next business day if
the value falls to less than 100% of the fair value of the securities loaned. The university earns interest and
dividends on the collateral held during the loan period, as well as a fee from the brokerage firm, and is
obligated to pay a fee and a rebate to the borrower. The university receives the net investment income. As of
June 30, 2007, the university had no exposure to borrowers because the amounts the it owed the borrowers
exceeded the amounts the borrowers owed the university. The university is fully indemnified by its lending
agents against any losses incurred as a result of borrower default.

Securities loans immediately terminate upon notice by either the university or the borrower. Cash collateral is
invested by the university’s lending agents in short-term investment pools in the university’s name, with
guidelines approved by the university. As of June 30, 2007, the securities in these pools had a weighted
average maturity of 62 days.

The State Department of Insurance permits SCIF to lend a certain portion of its securities to broker-dealers
and other entities with a simultaneous agreement to return the collateral for the same securities in the future. A
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third-party lending agent has been contracted to lend U.S. Treasury notes and bonds. Collateral, in the form of
cash and other securities, is adjusted daily and is required at all times to equal at least 100% of the fair value
of securities loaned. Collateral securities received cannot be pledged or sold unless the borrower defaults. The
maximum loan term is one year. In accordance with SCIF’s investment guidelines, cash collateral is invested
in short-term investments, with maturities matching the related loans. Interest income on these investments is
shared by the borrower, the third-party lending agent, and SCIF. As of December 31, 2006, the aggregate fair
value of the loaned securities and the cash collateral received in respect to these loans was $1.77 billion and
$1.80 billion, respectively.

Table 10 presents the investments of the discretely presented component units by investment type.

Table 10

Schedule of Investments — Discretely Presented Component Units
June 30, 2007
(amounts in thousands)

Fair Value
Investment Type
Equity securities $ 5,172,660
Debt securities™ 32,276,453
INVESTMENT CONTIACES ......oiiiiiie et e e e e e e st e e e e e e ssr e e e e snn e e s sne e e snneeenneneennnneas 857,981
L LUy U=V {0 To L USRS PPPR 4,692,124
REAI ESTAE ... et e e e e e e e e e e e nn e e e nr e e nann e e e nrn e e e nreean 487,251
MONEY MAIKEE SECUNLIES ...ttt e e s e e e e e s e e e e s ne e e e smne e e e nnne e e enneeeannneeenes 453,824
L AV 2= 1 L= =To U USRS 586,929
1Y LT (o F= T T (o = g SOOI 403,684
Externally held irr@VOCADIE TrUSTS .........eiiiieiiiii ettt e e s e e e snre e e s e e e e nnneennnes 302,374
Securities 18NAING COATETAL ............iiiiiii et b e e bttt et e e sa e e bt e s et e eneesaneeteeeas 4,920,992
LAY TS 2= I8 o T o) (1= = RN (1,354,776)
L6 (=T SO P PR URTROR 1,483,096
QLI € LTS (01T oS $ 50,282,592

* Debt securities include short-term investments not included in Cash and Pooled Investments.

1. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk for the University of California’s short-term investment pool is managed by constraining the
maturity of all individual securities to be less than five and one-half years. There is no restriction on weighted
average maturity of the portfolio, as it is managed relative to the liquidity demands of the investors. Portfolio
guidelines for the fixed-income portion of the university’s general endowment pool limit weighted average
effective duration to the effective duration of the Lehman Aggregate Index, plus or minus 20%.

SCIF guidelines provide that not less than 15% of its total assets shall be maintained in cash or in securities

maturing in five years or less. For information about CalPERS’ policies related to interest rate risk, refer to
Section B, Fiduciary Funds.
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Table 11 presents the interest rate risk of the fixed-income or variable-income securities of the major discretely
presented component units.

Table 11

Schedule of Investments in Fixed-Income or Variable-Income Securities - Discretely Presented Component Units -
Interest Rate Risk

June 30, 2007

(amounts in thousands)

University of University of
California California Foundations
Fair Value at Effective  Fair Value at Effective
Investment Type Year End Duration Year End Duration
U.S. Treasury bills, notes, and bonds .